

# LevelOne

# FBR-2000

# 2-WAN Load Balance Broadband Router

**User Manual** 

# **Table of Contents**

System	1
Admin	4
Settings	8
Entering the Settings window	8
Exporting Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway settings Date/Time	9 17
Synchronizing the Multi-Homing Gateway with the System Clock	17 19
Multiple Subnet settings	20
Add Multiple Subnet NAT Mode.	21
Modify Multiple Subnet	22
Delete Multiple Subnet	23
Hacker Alert	30
Auto Detect functions Route Table	30 34
Entering the Route Table screen	34
Route Table functions	34
Adding a new Static Route	35
Removing a Static Route DHCP	37 38
Entering the DHCP window	38
DHCP Address functions	38
DMZ Interface :	39
Enabling DHCP Support Dynamic DNS	40 42
Modify dynamic DNS	46
Delete Dynamic DNS	47
Language	48

Permitted IPs	49
Add Permitted IP Address Modify Permitted IP Address	50 51
Remove Permitted IP addresses	52 53
Interface	55
LAN	
Internal Interface WAN	57 58
Entering the Interface menu WAN 1/2 Interface DMZ	
Address	68
LAN	69
Entering the LAN window Adding a new LAN Address Modifying an LAN Address Removing an LAN Address LAN Group	
Entering the LAN Group window Modifying an LAN Group Removing an LAN Group WAN	73 75 76 77
Entering the WAN window Adding a new WAN Address Modifying an WAN Address Removing an WAN Address WAN Group	
Entering the WAN Group window Adding an WAN Group	81 82

Modify an WAN Group83
Removing an WAN Group84
DMZ
Service
Pre-defined
Entering a Pre-defined window95 Custom
Entering the Custom window96
Adding a new Service97
Modifying Custom Services
Removing Custom Services
Group
Accessing the Group window100
Adding Service Groups101
Modifying Service Groups102
Removing Service Groups103
Schedule104
Accessing the Schedule window105
Adding a new Schedule106
Modifying a Schedule107
Content filtering 109
URL Blocking110
Entering the URL blocking window110
Adding a URL Blocking policy111
Modifying a URL Blocking policy112 Script Blocking
Virtual Server
How to use Virtual Server and mapped IP118 Mapped IP

Entering the Mapped IP window	120
Adding a new IP Mapping	121
Modifying a Mapped IP	122
Removing a Mapped IP	123
Virtual Server	
Adding a Virtual Server	125
Modifying a Virtual Server IP Address	127
Removing a Virtual Server	
Setting the Virtual Server's services	129
Adding New Virtual Server Service Configuration	
Modifying the Virtual Server configurations	
VPN	135
IPSec Autokey	
PPTP Server	
Entering the PPTP Server window	
Modifying PPTP Server Design	
Adding PPTP Server	
Modifying PPTP Server	
Removing PPTP Server	
PPTP Client	
Entering the PPTP Client window	
Adding a PPTP Client	
Modifying PPTP Client	
Removing PPTP Client	
Policy	229
Outgoing	
Adding a new Outgoing Policy	
Modifying an Outgoing policy	
Removing the Outgoing Policy	
Enabled Monitoring function:	
Incoming	

Enter Incoming window	239
Adding an Incoming Policy	241
Modifying Incoming Policy	243
Removing an Incoming Policy	244
Log	257
Traffic Log	258
Entering the Traffic Log window	258
Traffic Log Table	259
Downloading the Traffic Logs	259
Clearing the Traffic Logs	261
Event Log	262
Entering the Event Log window	262
Downloading the Event Logs	263
Clearing the Event Logs	264
Download Logs	266
Log Backup	268
Enable Log Mail Support & Syslog Message	269
Disable Log Mail Support & Syslog Message	270
Alarm	271
Traffic Alarm	272
Entering the Traffic Alarm window	272
Downloading the Traffic Alarm Logs	273
Clearing the Traffic Alarm Logs	274
Event Alarm	275
Entering the Event Alarm window	275
Clearing Event Alarm Logs	277
Statistics	278

What is Statistics	278
How to use Statistics	
WAN Statistics	
Entering the Statistics window by Time Policy Statistics	
Entering the Statistics window	
Entering the Policy Statistics	
Status	<b>284</b> 285
Entering the Interface Status window ARP Table	
Entering the ARP Table window DHCP Clients	
Entering the DHCP Clients window	
Setup Examples	

# System

The device **FBR-2000** 2-WAN Broadband Router Administration and monitoring control is set by the System Administrator. The System Administrator can add or modify System settings and monitoring mode. The sub Administrators can only read System settings but not modify them. In **System**, the System Administrator can:

- (1) Add and change the sub Administrator's names and passwords;
- (2) Back up all Multi-Homing Gateway settings into local files;
- (3) Set up alerts for Hackers invasion.

### What is System?

"System" is the managing of settings such as the privileges of packets that pass through the FBR-2000 2-WAN Broadband Router and monitoring controls. Administrators may manage, monitor, and configure Multi-Homing Gateway settings. All configurations are "read-only" for all users other than the Administrator; those users are not able to change any settings for the Multi-Homing Gateway.

The eleven sub functions under System are Admin, Setting, Date/Time, Multiple Subnet, Hack Alert, Route Table, DHCP, DNS Proxy, Dynamic DNS, Logout and Software Update.

Admin: has control of user access to the Multi-Homing Gateway. He/she can add/remove users and change passwords.

**Setting:** The Administrator may use this function to backup Multi-Homing Gateway configurations and export (save) them to an "**Administrator**" computer or anywhere on the network; or restore a configuration file to the device; or restore the Multi-Homing Gateway back to default factory settings. Under **Setting**, the Administrator may enable e-mail alert notification. This will alert Administrator(s) automatically whenever the Multi-Homing Gateway has experienced unauthorized access or a network hit (hacking or flooding). Once enabled, an IP address of a SMTP(Simple Mail Transfer protocol) Server is required. Up to two e-mail addresses can be entered for the alert notifications.

**Date/Time:** This function enables the Multi-Homing Gateway to be synchronized either with an Internet Server time or with the client computer's clock.

**Multiple Subnet** This function allows local port to set multiple subnet works and connect with the internet through different WAN 1 IP Addresses.

Hacker Alert When abnormal conditions occur, the Multi-Homing Gateway will send an e-mail alert to notify the Administrator, and also display warning messages in the **Event** window of Alarm.

**Route Table** Use this function to enable the Administrator to add static routes for the networks when the dynamic route is not efficient enough.

**DHCP** Administrator can configure DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol) settings for the LAN (LAN) network.

**DNS-Proxy** The Multi-Homing Gateway Administrator may use the DNS Proxy function to make the Multi-Homing Gateway act as a DNS Server for the Internal and DMZ network. All DNS requests to a specific Domain Name will be routed to the Multi-Homing Gateway's IP address. For example, let's say an organization has their mail server (i.e., mail.MH200.com) in the DMZ network (i.e. 192.168.10.10). The outside Internet world may access the mail server of the organization easily by its domain name, providing that the Administrator has set up Virtual Server or Mapped IP settings correctly. However, for the users in the Internal network, their WAN DNS server will assign them a public IP address for the mail server. So for the Internet, then come back through the Multi-Homing Gateway to access the mail server. Essentially, the internal network is accessing the mail server by a real public IP address, while the mail server serves their request by a NAT address and not a real one. This odd situation occurs when there are servers in the DMZ network and they are binded to real IP addresses. To avoid this, set up DNS Proxy so all the Internal network computers will use the Multi-Homing Gateway as a DNS server, which acts as the DNS Proxy.

**Dynamic DNS** The Dynamic DNS (require Dynamic DNS Service) allows you to alias a dynamic IP address to a static hostname, allowing your device to be more easily accessed by specific name. When this function is enabled, the IP address in Dynamic DNS Server will be automatically updated with the new IP address provided by ISP

- 2 -

Language The software provides English version, German version, Traditional Chinese Version and Simplified Chinese Version for you to choose.

**Permitted IP** Only the authorized IP address is permitted to manage the Multi-Homing Gateway.

**Logout** Administrator logs out the Multi-Homing Gateway. This function protects your system while you are away.

**Software Update:** Administrators may visit distributor's web site to download the latest firmware. Administrators may update the device firmware to optimize its performance and keep up with the latest fixes for intruding attacks.

## Admin

On the left hand menu, click on **Setup**, and then select **Admin** below it. The current list of Administrator(s) shows up.



#### Settings of the Administration table

<u>Administrator Name</u>: The username of Administrators for the Multi-Homing Gateway. The user **admin** cannot be removed.

Privilege: The privileges of Administrators (Admin or Sub Admin)

The username of the main Administrator is Administrator with read / write privilege.

Sub Admins may be created by the **Admin** by clicking **New Sub Admin**. Sub Admins have **read only** privilege.

**Configure:** Click **Modify** to change the "Sub Administrator's" password and click **Remove** to delete a "Sub Administrator."

#### Adding a new Sub Administrator

- Step 1. In the Admin window, click the New Sub Admin button to create a new Sub Administrator.
- Step 2. In the Add New Sub Administrator window:
  - **Sub Admin Name:** enter the username of new **Sub Admin.**
  - **Password:** enter a password for the new **Sub Admin.**
  - **Confirm Password:** enter the password again.
- Step 3. Click OK to add the user or click Cancel to cancel the addition.



### Changing the Sub-Administrator's Password

- Step 1. In the Admin window, locate the Administrator name you want to edit, and click on Modify in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** The **Modify Administrator Password** window will appear. Enter in the required information:
  - **Password:** enter original password.
  - New Password: enter new password
  - **Confirm Password:** enter the new password again.
- Step 3. Click OK to confirm password change or click Cancel to cancel it.



#### **Removing a Sub Administrator**

- **Step 1.** In the Administration table, locate the Administrator name you want to edit, and click on the Remove option in the Configure field.
- Step 2. The Remove confirmation pop-up box will appear.
- Step 3. Click OK to remove that Sub Admin or click Cancel to cancel.

G · O · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎 📩	🛛 🖉 - 🍃 🗔 - 🍪			न म ×
Router		Admin		
SystemAdminSettingDate/TimeMultiple SubnetHacker AlertBlaster AlertRoute TableDHCPHost TableDynamic DNSLanguagePermitted IPsLogoutSoftware UpdateInterfaceAddressServiceScheduleContent FilteringVirtual ServerVPNPolicyLogAlarmStatisticsStatistics	Admin Name admin sub_admin Microsoft Internet E ? Are you sure OK	Privilege Read/Write Read New Sub Admin xplorer X you want to remove ? Cancel	Configure Modify Modify Remove	
bttp://192.168.1.1/coi-bin/gener.coi/type=admin&m	ndifv=Delete#=1&admin_tyne=3		🔊 Internel	

## **Settings**

The Administrator may use this function to backup the **FBR-2000** 2-WAN Broadband Router configurations and export (save) them to an "**Administrator**" computer or anywhere on the network; or restore a configuration file to the device; or restore the Multi-Homing Gateway back to default factory settings.

#### **Entering the Settings window**

Click Setting in the System menu to enter the Settings window. The Multi-Homing Gateway Configuration settings will be shown on the screen.

Multi-homin Router	Sett	ting	
System	Multi-homing Router		
Admin	Export System Setting to Client		
Setting	Import System Setting from Client	Browse	
Date/Time			
Multiple Subnet	Reset Factory Setting		
Hacker Alert	E-mail Setting		
Blaster Alert	Enable E-mail Alert Notification		
Route Table	Device Name		
DHCP	Sender Address (Required by some ISPs)		
Host Table	SMTP Server		
Dynamic DNS			
Language	E-mail Address 1		
Permitted IPs	E-mail Address 2		
Logout	Mail Test	MailTest	
Software Update	Web Management (WAN Interface)		
Interface	HTTP Port	80	
Address	MTLL Setting		
Service	MTU	1500 Duton	
Schedule	14110	Bytes	
Content Filtering Virtual Server	Link Speed / Duplex Mode Setting		
VPN	WAN1	Auto Mode 💌	
Policy	WAN2	Auto Mode 🛛 📉	
Log	Dynamic Routing (RIPv2)		
Alarm	Enable 🔳 LAN 📕 WAN1 🔳 WAN2 🔳 DMZ		
Statistics	Routing information update timer	30 Seconds	
Status	Routing information timeout	180 Seconds	

### **Exporting Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway settings**

- Step 1. Under Multi-Homing Gateway Configuration, click on the Download button next to Export System Settings to Client.
- **Step 2.** When the **File Download** pop-up window appears, choose the destination place in which to save the exported file. The **Administrator** may choose to rename the file if preferred.



#### **Importing Multi-Homing Gateway settings**

- Step 1. Under Multi-Homing Gateway Configuration, click on the Browse button next to Import System Settings. When the Choose File pop-up window appears, select the file to which contains the saved Multi-Homing Gateway Settings, then click OK.
- Step 2. Click OK to import the file into the Multi-Homing Gateway or click Cancel to cancel importing.

Multi-homing Router	Sett	ing	
System	Multi-homing Router		
Admin	Export System Setting to Client		
Setting	Import System Setting from Client	C:\Documents and Settin Browse	
Date/Time			
Multiple Subnet	Reset Factory Setting		
Hacker Alert	E-mail Setting		
Blaster Alert	Enable E-mail Alert Notification		
Route Table	Device Name		
DHCP	Sender Address (Required by some ISPs)		
Host Table	SMTP Server		
Dynamic DNS			
Language	E-mail Address 1		
Permitted IPs	E-mail Address 2		
Logout	Mail Test	MailTest	
Software Update	Web Management (WAN Interface)		
nterface	HTTP Port	80	
Address	MTLLSetting		
Service	MTUSetting	1500 Puter	
Schedule	wite	Bytes	
Virtual Server	Link Speed / Duplex Mode Setting		
VPN	WAN1	Auto Mode	
Policy	WAN2	Auto Mode 🛛 🞽	
Log	Dynamic Routing (RIPv2)		
Alarm	Enable 🛛 LAN 🗶 WAN1 🗖 WAN2 🔳 DMZ	5	
Statistics	Routing information update timer	30 Seconds	
Status	Routing information timeout	180 Seconds	

## **Restoring Factory Default Settings**

#### Step 1. Select Reset Factory Settings under Multi-Homing Gateway Configuration.

Step 2. Click OK at the bottom-right of the screen to restore the factory settings.



#### **Enabling E-mail Alert Notification**

- Step 1. Select Enable E-mail Alert Notification under E-Mail Settings. This function will enable the Multi-Homing Gateway to send e-mail alerts to the System Administrator when the network is being attacked by hackers or when emergency conditions occur.
- Step 2. Device Name: Enter the Device Name.
- Step 3. Sender Address(Required by some ISPs): Enter the Sender Address.(Some ISPs need Required.)
- Step 4. SMTP Server IP: Enter SMTP server's IP address.
- Step 5. E-Mail Address 1: Enter the first e-mail address to receive the alarm notification.
- Step 6. E-Mail Address 2: Enter the second e-mail address to receive the alarm notification. (Optional)
- Step 7. Click OK on the bottom-right of the screen to enable E-mail alert notification.

Multi-homin Router	9 Set	ting
System	Multi-homing Router	
Admin	Export System Setting to Client [Download]	
Setting	Import System Setting from Client	Browse
Date/Time		( ex: Multi_Home.conf )
Multiple Subnet	Reset Factory Setting	
Hacker Alert	E mail Satting	
Blaster Alert	Enable E-mail Alert Notification	
Route Table	Device Name	EBB-2000
DHCP	Sender Address (Required by some ISPs)	lovel1.com
Host Table	CMTB Server	
Dynamic DNS	Sivil F Server	mailleven.com
Language	E-mail Address 1	mis@mail.levelone
Permitted IPs	E-mail Address 2	mis1@mail.levelor
Logout	Mail Test	MailTest
Software Update	Web Management (WAN Interface)	
nterface	HTTP Port	80
Address	NTI O-HI-	
Service	MTU	1500
Schedule		1500 Bytes
Content Filtering	Link Speed / Duplex Mode Setting	
	WAN1	Auto Mode 🔛
Policy	WAN2	Auto Mode 💌
Log	Dynamic Routing (RIPv2)	
Alarm	Enable LAN WAN1 WAN2 DMZ	
Statistics	Routing information update timer	30 Seconds
Status	Routing information timeout	180 Seconds

## Web Management (WAN Interface) (Remote UI management)

The administrator can change the port number used by HTTP port anytime. (Remote UI management)

**Step 1.** Set Web Management (WAN Interface). The administrator can change the port number used by HTTP port anytime.

🔇 • 🔘 - 🖹 🖻 🟠 🔎	🛠 🥹 🔗 · 🍇 🔂 · 🍇		🦺 – 8 ×
Multi-homing Router	Sett	ing	
System Admin Setting Date/Time Multiple Subnet Hacker Alert Blaster Alert	<ul> <li>Enable E-mail Alert Notification Device Name Sender Address (Required by some ISPs)</li> <li>SMTP Server</li> <li>E-mail Address 1</li> <li>E-mail Address 2</li> <li>Mail Test</li> </ul>	MailTest	
Route Fable DHCP Host Table Dynamic DNS Language	Web Management (WAN Interface) HTTP Port MTU Setting MTU	80 1500 Bytes	
Permitted IPs Logout Software Update	Link Speed / Duplex Mode Setting WAN1 WAN2	Auto Mode 👻 Auto Mode 👻	
Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN	Dynamic Routing (RIPv2) Enable LAN WAN1 WAN2 DMZ Routing information update timer Routing information timeout Administration Packet Logging	30 Seconds 180 Seconds	
Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	System Reboot Reboot Multi-homing Router Appliance	) OK Cance	
<u>e</u>		🖉 Internet	

## MTU (set networking packet length)

The administrator can modify the networking packet length.

Step 1. MTU Setting. The administrator can modify the networking packet length.



## **To-Multi-Homing Gateway Packets Log**

Select this option to the device's **To-Multi-Homing Gateway Packets Log.** Once this function is enabled, every packet to this appliance will be recorded for system manager to trace.



## **Multi-Homing Gateway Reboot**

Select this option to the device's **Multi-Homing Gateway Reboot.** Once this function is enabled, **the Multi-Homing Gateway will be reboot**.

- Step 1. Click Setting in the Administration menu to enter the settings window.
- Step 2. Reboot Multi-Homing Gateway : Click Reboot.
- Step 3. A confirmation pop-up box will appear.
- **Step 4.** Follow the confirmation pop-up box, click **OK** to restart Multi-Homing Gateway or click **Cancel** to discard changes.



## Date/Time

#### Synchronizing the Multi-Homing Gateway with the System Clock

Admin can configure the FBR-2000 Multi-Homing Gateway date and time by either syncing to an Internet Network Time Server (NTP) or by syncing to your computer clock.

#### Follow these steps to sync to an Internet Time Server

- **Step 1.** Enable synchronization by checking the box.
- **Step 2.** Click the down arrow to select the offset time from GMT.
- **Step 3.** Enter the Server IP Address or Server name with which you want to synchronize.
- **Step 4.** Update system clock every 5 minutes You can set the interval time to synchronize with outside servers. If you set it to 0, it means the device will not synchronize automatically.

#### Follow this step to sync to your computer clock.

Step 1. Click on the Sync button.

Click the **OK** button below to apply the setting or click **Cancel** to discard changes.



## Multiple Subnet

# NAT mode

Multiple Subnet allows local port to set multiple subnet works and connect with the internet through different WAN 1 IP Addresses.

For instance : The lease line of a company applies several real IP Addresses 168.85.88.0/24 , and the company is divided into R&D department, service, sales department, procurement department, accounting department , the company can distinguish each department by different subne works for the purpose of convenient management. The settings are as the following :

1.R&D department subnet work : 192.168.1.11/24(Internal)  $\leftarrow \rightarrow$  168.85.88.253(WAN 1)

- 2. Service department subnet work: 192.168.2.11/24(Internal)  $\leftarrow \rightarrow$  168.85.88.252(WAN 1)
- 3.Sales depam ent subnet work : 192.168.3.11/24(Internal)  $\leftarrow \rightarrow 168.85.88.251$ (WAN 1)
- 4. Procurement department subnet work
- 192.168.4.11/24(Internal) ←→ 168.85.88.250(WAN 1)
- 5. Accounting department subnet work
- 192.168.5.11/24(Internal) ←→ 168.85.88.249(WAN 1)

The first department(R&D department) was set while setting interface IP, the other four ones have to be added in Multiple Subnet <sup>,</sup> after completing the settings, each department use the different WAN IP Address to connect to the internet. The settings of each department are as the following

Service IP Address : 192.168.2.1

Subnet Mask : 255.255.255.0

Default Gateway : 192.168.2.11

The other departments are also set by groups, this is the function of Multiple Subnet.

#### **Multiple Subnet settings**

Click Multiple Subnet in the System menu to enter Multiple Subnet window.



#### **Multiple Subnet**

- WAN Interface IP / Forwarding Mode : Display WAN Port IP Address and Forwarding Mode.
- Alias IP of Int. Interface / Netmask : Local port IP Address and subnet Mask.
- Modify : Modify the settings of Multiple Subnet. Click Modify to modify the parameters of Multiple Subnet or click Delete to delete settings.

### Add Multiple Subnet NAT Mode.

Step 1. Click the Add button below to add Multiple Subnet.

Step 2. Enter the IP Address in the website name column of the new window.

Alias IP of LAN Interface : Enter Local port IP Address.

Netmask : Enter Local port subnet Mask.

WAN Interface IP

Add WAN 1 or WAN2 IP

#### **Forwarding Mode**

Click the NAT button below to setting.

Step 3. Click OK to add Multiple Subnet or click Cancel to discard changes.

🔇 · 🔘 · 💌 🖻 🏠	🔎 📩 🥹 😂 😪 - 🖓				n – स ×
Multi-homi Router	ng	Multiple	e Subne	t	
System Admin Setting Date/Time	Add New Multiple Subnet IF Alias IP of LAN Interface Netmask	192.168.100.1           255.255.255.0			
Multiple Subnet	WAN	l Interface IP		Forwarding Mode	
Hacker Alert	WAN1	61.11.11.11	Assist	⊙ NAT ○ Routing	1
Blaster Alert	WAN2	211.22.22.22	Assist	⊙ NAT ○ Routing	<b>1</b>
Route Table					
DHCP				UK	Incel
Host Table					
Dynamic DNS					
Language					
Permitted IPs					
Logout					
Software Update					
Interface					
Address					
Service					
Content Filtering					
Virtual Server					
VPN					
Policy					
Log					
Alarm					
Statistics					
Status					
🙆 Done				🌍 Inte	rnet

## **Modify Multiple Subnet**

Step 1. Find the IP Address you want to modify and click Modify

Step 2. Enter the new IP Address in Modify Multiple Subnet window.

Step 3. Click the OK button below to change the setting or click Cancel to discard changes.

3 · 0 · 🗷 2 🟠 🔎	े 📩 😌 🙆 - 🍇 🗔 - 🍇				🦧 – P	×
Router		Multiple	Subnet			
System Admin Setting Date/Time	Modify Multiple Subnet IP Alias IP of LAN Interface Netmask	192.168.100.1 255.255.255.0				
Multiple Subnet Hacker Alert	WAN1	N Interface IP 61.11.11.11	Assist	Forwardi	ng Mode O Routing	
Blaster Alert	WAN2	211.22.22.22	Assist	⊙ NAT	O Routing	
Host Table Dynamic DNS Language Permitted IPs Logout Software Update Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics						
e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e					💕 Internet	

### **Delete Multiple Subnet**

Step 1. Find the IP Address you want to delete and click Delete.

**Step 2.**A confirmation pop-up box will appear, click OK to delete the setting or click Cancel to discard changes.



# **Routing Mode**

Multiple Subnet allows local port to set Multiple Subnet Routing Mode works and connect with the internet through different WAN IP Addresses.

For example, the leased line of a company applies several real IP Addresses 192.168.2.0/24 and the company is divided into R&D, Customer Service, Sales, Procurement, and Accounting Department. The company can distinguish each department by different subnet works for the purpose of convenient management.

The settings are as the following :



Step 1. Click System Configuration on the left side menu bar, then click MultipleSubnet below it. Enter Multiple Subnet window.



Step 2. The definition of Multiple Subnet :

- Forwarding Mode : Display Forwarding Mode which is NAT Mode or Routing Mode.
- WAN Interface IP: Display WAN Port IP Address.
- Alias IP of Int. Interface / Subnet Mask : Local port IP Address and subnet Mask.
- Modify : Modify the settings of Multiple Subnet. Click Modify to modify the parameters of Multiple Subnet or click Delete to delete settings.

#### Adding a Multiple Subnet Routing Mode

Step 1. Click the Add button below to add Multiple Subnet.

Step 2. Enter the IP Address in Add Multiple Subnet window.

Forwarding Mode : Click the Routing button below to setting
WAN Interface IP : Add WAN IP.
Alias IP of LAN Interface : Enter Local port IP Address.
Netmask : Enter Local port subnet Mask.

Step 3. Click OK to add Multiple Subnet or click Cancel to discard changes.

![](_page_32_Picture_5.jpeg)

**Step 4:** Adding a new Incoming Policy. In the incoming window, click the **New Entry** button.

Router Multiple Subnet	
System         WAN Interface IP / Forwarding Mode         Alias IP of Internal Interface / Netmask         Configure           Admin         WAN 1 : 192.168.10.106 / NAT         192.168.10.016 / NAT         192.168.10.106 / Jack         192.168.10.106 / Jac	
Setting WAN 2 : / Routing	
Date/Time         WAN 1 : 192.168.10.106 / NAT         192.168.2.1 / 255.255.255.0         Modify         Remove	
Hacker Alert	
Blaster Alert New Entry	
Route Table	
DHCP	
Host Table	
Dynamic DNS Design of the second s	
Language	
Permitted IPs	
Logout	
Software Update	
Interface	
Address	
Service	
Schedule	
Content Filtering	
Policy	
Log	
Alarm	
Statistics	
Status	
Image: Second se	

#### Modify a Multiple Subnet Routing Mode

**Step 1.** Find the IP Address you want to modify in **Multiple Subnet** menu, then click **Modify** button, on the right side of the service providers, click **OK**.

Step 2. Enter the new IP Address in Modify Multiple Subnet window.

Step 3. Click the OK button below to change the setting or click Cancel to discard changes.

3 · 0 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	े 📩 🚱 🗟 - 🍇 🗟 - 🖓				🧦 – & ×
Multi-homin Router	9	Multiple	Subne	t	
System Admin Setting Date/Time	Modify Multiple Subnet IP Alias IP of LAN Interface Netmask	192.168.2.1 255.255.255.0			
Multiple Subpet	WAN	Interface IP		Forwardin	na Mode
Hacker Alert	WAN1	192,168,10,106	Assist	• NAT	Routing
Blaster Alert	WAN2	0.0.0.0	Assist	O NAT	Routing
Route Table			100101	0.1411 0	, risuling
DHCP					OK Cancel
Host Table					
Dynamic DNS					
Language					
Permitted IPs					
Logout					
Software Update					
Interface					
Address					
Service					
Schedule Content Filtering					
Virtual Server					
VPN					
Policy					
Log					
Alarm					
Statistics					
Status					
2					
e					1 Internet

#### Removing a Multiple Subnet Routing Mode

**Step 1.** Find the IP Address you want to delete in **Multiple Subnet** menu, then click **Delete** button, on the right side of the service providers, click **OK**.

**Step 2.** A confirmation pop-up box will appear, click **OK** to delete the setting or click **Cancel** to discard changes.

System       Multiple Subpet         Admin       Setting         Date/Time       WAN 1: 192.168.10.106 / NAT         Hacker Alert       Baster Alert         Baster Alert       WAN 2: / Routing         WAN 2: / Routing       War 2: / Routing         Wan 2: / Routing       War 2: / Routing         War 3: / Routing       War 2: / Routing         <		🔆 🚱 🔗 🍃 🖻 · 🍪		<b>A</b> - 8
System       WAN Interface IP / Forwarding Mode Alias IP of Internal Interface / Netmask Configure         Admin       WAN 1: 192.168.10.106 / NAT       192.168.100.1 / 255.255.255.0       Modify Remove         Date/Time       WAN 1: 192.168.10.106 / NAT       192.168.10.1 / 255.255.255.0       Modify Remove         WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         Blaster Alert       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing       WAN 2: / Routing         Unamage       Wan 2: / Routing       Wan	Router	Mu	ltiple Subnet	
	System         Admin         Setting         Date/Time         Multiple Subnet         Hacker Alert         Blaster Alert         Blaster Alert         Blaster Alert         DHCP         Host Table         Dynamic DNS         Language         Permitted IPs         Logout         Software Update         Interface         Address         Service         Schedule         Content Filtering         Virtual Server         VPN         Policy         Log         Alarm         Statistics         Status	WAN Interface IP / Forwarding Mode WAN 1 : 192.168.10.106 / NAT WAN 2 : / Routing WAN 1 : 192.168.10.106 / NAT WAN 2 : / Routing Microsoft Internet Exp ? Are you sure yo OK	Alias IP of Internal Interface / Netma 192.168.100.1 / 255.255.255.0 192.168.2.1 / 255.255.255.0 New Entry Iverer X uwant to remove ? Cancel	ISK Configure Medify Remove
# Hacker Alert

The Administrator can enable the device's auto detect functions in this section. When abnormal conditions occur, the Multi-Homing Gateway will send an e-mail alert to notify the Administrator, and also display warning messages in the **Event** window of **Alarm**.



## **Auto Detect functions**

Detect SYN Attack: Select this option to detect TCP SYN attacks that hackers send to server computers continuously to block or cut down all the connections of the servers. These attacks will prevent valid users from connecting to the servers.

[SYN Flood Threshold(Total) Pkts/Sec]: The System Administrator can enter the maximum number of SYN packets per second that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway.

- [SYN Flood Threshold( Per Source IP) Pkts/Sec]: The System Administrator can enter the maximum number of SYN packets per second from attacking source IP Address that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway.
- [SYN Flood Threshold Blocking Time (Per Source IP) Seconds]: The System Administrator can enter the blocking time when the number of SYN packets per second from attacking source IP Address that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway exceed the maximum number (define as above). After blocking for certain seconds, the device will start to calculate the max number of SYN packets per second from attacking source IP Address, if the max number still exceed the define value, it will block the attacking IP Address continuously.
- Detect ICMP Attack: Select this option to detect ICMP flood attacks. When hackers continuously send PING packets to all the machines of the LAN networks or to the Multi-Homing Gateway via broadcasting, your network is experiencing an ICMP flood attack.
  - [ICMP Flood Threshold(Total) Pkts/Sec]: The System Administrator can enter the maximum number of ICMP packets per second that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway.
  - 【ICMP Flood Threshold( Per Source IP) Pkts/Sec】: The System Administrator can enter the maximum number of ICMP packets per second from attacking source IP Address that is allow to enter the network / Multi-Homing Gateway.
  - [ICMP Flood Threshold Blocking Time (Per Source IP) Seconds]: The System Administrator can enter the blocking time when the number of ICMP packets per second from attacking source IP Address that is allow to enter the network / Multi-Homing Gateway exceed the maximum number (define as above). After blocking for certain seconds, the device will start to calculate the max number of ICMP packets per second from attacking source IP Address, if the max number still exceed the define value, it will block the attacking IP Address continuously.

- Detect UDP Attack: The same as ICMP Flood.
  - [UDP Flood Threshold(Total) Pkts/Sec]: The System Administrator can enter the maximum number of UDP packets per second that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway.
  - 【UDP Flood Threshold( Per Source IP) Pkts/Sec】: The System Administrator can enter the maximum number of UDP packets per second from attacking source IP Address that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway.
  - [UDP Flood Threshold Blocking Time (Per Source IP) Seconds] : The System Administrator can enter the blocking time when the number of UDP packets per second from attacking source IP Address that is allow to enter the network/Multi-Homing Gateway exceed the maximum number (define as above). After blocking for certain seconds, the device will start to calculate the max number of UDP packets per second from attacking source IP Address, if the max number still exceed the define value, it will block the attacking IP Address continuously.
- Detect Ping of Death Attack: Select this option to detect the attacks of tremendous trash data in PING packets that hackers send to cause System malfunction This attack can cause network speed to slow down, or even make it necessary to restart the computer to get a normal operation.
- Detect IP Spoofing Attack: Select this option to detect spoof attacks. Hackers disguise themselves as trusted users of the network in Spoof attacks. They use a fake identity to try to pass through the Multi-Homing Gateway System and invade the network.
- Detect Port Scan Attack: Select this option to detect the port scans hackers use to continuously scan networks on the Internet to detect computers and vulnerable ports that are opened by those computers.
- Detect Tear Drop Attack: Select this option to detect tear drop attacks. These are packets that are segmented to small packets with negative length. Some Systems treat the negative value as a very large number, and copy enormous data into the System to cause System damage, such as a shut down or a restart.
- Filter IP Source Route Option: Each IP packet can carry an optional field that specifies the replying address that can be different from the source address - 32 -

specified in packet's header. Hackers can use this address field on disguised packets to invade LAN networks and send LAN networks' data back to them.

Detect Land Attack: Some Systems may shut down when receiving packets with the same source and destination addresses, the same source port and destination port, and when SYN on the TCP header is marked. Enable this function to detect such abnormal packets.

After enabling the needed detect functions, click **OK** to activate the changes.



In this section, the Administrator can add static routes for the networks.

## **Entering the Route Table screen**

Click **System** on the left side menu bar, then click **Route Table** below it. The Route Table window appears, in which current route settings are shown.



### **Route Table functions**

- Interface: Destination network , LAN or WAN 1/2 networks.
- Destination IP: IP address of destination network.

- NetMask: Netmask of destination network.
- **Gateway:** Gateway IP address for connecting to destination network.
- **Configure:** Change settings in the route table.

#### Adding a new Static Route

- **Step 1.** In the Route Table window, click the New Entry button.
- Step 2. In the Add New Static Route window, enter new static route information.
- **Step 3.** In the Interface field's pull-down menu, choose the network to connect (Internal, WAN 1 or WAN 2).
- Step 4. Click OK to add the new static route or click Cancel to cancel.

Multi-homing Router		Route Table	
System	Add New Static Route		
Admin	Destination IP	192.168.100.1	
Setting	Netmask	255.255.255.0	
Date/Time	Gateway	192.168.1.2	
Multiple Subnet	Interface	LAN V	
Hacker Alert			
Blaster Alert		OK OK	Cancel
Route Table			
DHCP			
Host Table			
Dynamic DNS			
Language			
Permitted IPs			
Logout			
Software Update			
Interface			
Address			
Service			
Schedule			
Content Filtering			
Virtual Server			
Pelicy			
Log			
Alarm			
Statistics			
Status			

## Modifying a Static Route:

- **Step 1.** In the Route Table menu, find the route to edit and click the corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- Step 2. In the Modify Static Route window, modify the necessary routing addresses.
- Step 3. Click OK to apply changes or click Cancel to cancel it.



## **Removing a Static Route**

- **Step 1.** In the Route Table window, find the route to remove and click the corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click **OK** to confirm removing or click **Cancel** to cancel it.

With Homming Router       Route Table         Setting Date/Time       Interface       Destination IP / Netmask       Gateway       Configure         Admin       192.168.100.0 / 255.255.55.0 192.168.12       Imaging       Imaging         Date/Time       Imaging       Imaging       Imaging       Imaging         DHCP       Imaging       Imaging       Imaging       Imaging         Dynamic DNS Language       Imaging       Imaging       Imaging       Imaging         Permitted IPs       Content Filtering       Imaging       Im	3 · 0 · 🖻 🖻 🏠 🔎	* 😧 😒 -	🖕 🔜 • 🖓			🥂 – 8 ×
System   Admin   Admin   Setting   Date/Time   Multiple Subate   Hacker Alert   Blaster Alert   Blaster Alert   Blaster Alert   Dynamic DNS   Language   Permitted IPs   Cost   Cost   Software Update   Interface   Address   Shedule   Content Filtering   Virtual Server   VPN   Policy   Log   Aarm   Status	Router	J	Route Ta	ble		
	SystemAdminSettingDate/TimeMultiple SubnetHacker AlertBlaster AlertRoute TableDHCPHost TableDynamic DNSLanguagePermitted IPsLogoutSoftware UpdateInterfaceAddressServiceScheduleContent FilteringVirtual ServerVPNPolicyLogAlarmStatisticsStatus	Interface	Destination IP / Netmask 192.168.100.0 / 255.255.255.0 New Entry Microsoft Internet Explorer Are you sure you want to remove ? OK Cancel	Gateway 192.168.1.2	Configure Medify Remove	



In the section, the Administrator can configure DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol) settings for the LAN (LAN) network.

#### **Entering the DHCP window**

**Step 1.** Click **System** on the left hand side menu bar, then click **DHCP** below it. The DHCP window appears in which current DHCP settings are shown on the screen.



### **DHCP Address functions**

Enable DHCP Support : Enable /Disable DCHP Support

Domain Name : Enter the Domain Name of DHCP

Automatically Get DNS : Automatically detect DNS Server.

- **DNS Server 1** : Enter the distributed IP address of DNS Server1.
- **DNS Server 2** : Enter the distributed IP address of DNS Server2.
- WINS Server 1 : Enter the distributed IP address of WINS Server1.
- WINS Server 2 : Enter the distributed IP address of WINS Server2.

#### Internal Interface :

- Client IP Address Range 1: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients.
- Client IP Address Range 2: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients. (Optional)

#### **DMZ Interface :**

- Client IP Address Range 1: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients.
- Client IP Address Range 2: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients. (Optional)
- Leased Time: Enter the leased time for DHCP.

# **Enabling DHCP Support**

Step 1. In the Dynamic IP Address window, click Enable DHCP Support.

#### Step 2.

Enable DHCP Support : Enable /Disable DCHP Support

Domain Name : Enter the Domain Name of DHCP

Automatically Get DNS : Automatically detect DNS Server.

- **DNS Server 1** : Enter the distributed IP address of DNS Server1.
- **DNS Server 2** : Enter the distributed IP address of DNS Server2.
- WINS Server 1 : Enter the distributed IP address of WINS Server1.
- WINS Server 2 : Enter the distributed IP address of WINS Server2.

#### Internal Interface :

- Client IP Address Range 1: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients.
- Client IP Address Range 2: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients. (Optional)

#### **DMZ Interface :**

- Client IP Address Range 1: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients.
- Client IP Address Range 2: Enter the starting and the ending IP address dynamically assigning to DHCP clients. (Optional)
- Leased Time: Enter the leased time for DHCP.

Step 3. Click OK to enable DHCP support.

#### 🥂 – 🗗 × G · O · 🖻 🖻 🟠 🔎 🛧 🏵 🙆 · 💺 🚍 · 🎕 level Multi-homing DHCP Router System Dynamic IP Address Admin Subnet 192.168.1.0 Netmask 255.255.255.0 Setting Gateway 192.168.1.1 Broadcast 192.168.1.255 Date/Time Multiple Subnet Enable DHCP Support Hacker Alert Domain Name Blaster Alert Automatically Get DNS Route Table **DNS Server 1** 192.168.1.1 DHCP **DNS Server 2** Host Table WINS Server 1 Dynamic DNS Language WINS Server 2 Permitted IPs Logout LAN Interface : Software Update **Client IP Range 1** 192.168.1.2 То 192.168.1.254 Interface Client IP Range 2 То Address Service DMZ Interface : Schedule **Content Filtering Client IP Range 1** 192.168.11.2 То 192.168.11.254 Virtual Server **Client IP Range 2** 192.168.11.1 То 192.168.11.253 VPN Policy Log Leased Time 999 hours Alarm Statistics OK Cancel Status Internet 0

# **Dynamic DNS**

The **Dynamic DNS** (require Dynamic DNS Service) allows you to alias a dynamic IP address to a static hostname, allowing your device to be more easily accessed by specific name. When this function is enabled, the IP address in Dynamic DNS Server will be automatically updated with the new IP address provided by ISP.

Click Dynamic DNS in the System menu to enter Dynamic DNS window.

- 1. The nouns in Dynamic DNS window :
  - Update Status [ S Connecting; Update succeed; Update fail;
     Unidentified error ]
  - **Domain name** : Enter the password provided by ISP.
  - WAN IP Address : IP Address of the WAN port.
  - Modify : Modify dynamic DNS settings. Click Modify to change the DNS parameters; click Delete to delete the settings.
- 2. How to use dynamic DNS :

The Multi-Homing Gateway provides 3 service providers, users have to regidter first to use this function. For the usage regulations, see the providers' websites.

<u>How to register</u>: First, Click **Dynamic DNS** in the **System** menu to enter Dynamic DNS window, then click **Add** button , on the right side of the service providers, click **Register**, the service peroviders' website will appear, please refer to the website for the way of registration.

G · 🕑 · 🖹 🖻 🚮	🔎 📩 🥹 🗟 · 🍇 📄			🥂 – ð ×
Multi-homi Router	ng	Dynamic DNS		
System Admin Setting Date/Time Multiple Subnet Hacker Alert Blaster Alert Blaster Alert Blaster Alert DHCP Host Table DHCP Host Table DHCP Host Table Dynamic DNS Language Permitted IPS Logout Software Update Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log	i Domain Name	WAN IP 192.168.10.106 New Entry	Configure Modify Remove	
Alarm Statistics Status				
🕘 Done			🔮 Intern	et 💦

<u>How to register</u>: Firstly, Click **Dynamic DNS** in the **System** menu to enter Dynamic DNS window, then click **Add** button , on the right side of the service providers, click **Register**, the service providers' website will appear, please refer to the website for the way of registration.



#### **Dynamic DNS settings**

Step 1: Click Add button.

Step 2: Click the information in the column of the new window.

- **Service providers** : Select service providers.
- **Register** : to the service providers' website.
- WAN IP Address : IP Address of the WAN port.
- **□ automatically fill in the WAN 1/2 IP** : Check to automatically fill in the WAN 1/2 IP. ∘
- **User Name** : Enter the registered user name.
- **Password** : Enter the password provided by ISP(Internet Service Provider).
- Domain name : Your host domain name provided by ISP.

Step 4: Click OK to add dynamic DNS or click Cancel to discard changes.

🔇 · 🔘 · 🖹 🗟 🟠 🔎	) 📩 🥹 🔕 😔 🖓 🕯	8	🥂 – ē ×
Router		Dynamic DNS	
System Admin Setting Date/Time Multiple Subnet Hacker Alert Blaster Aler	Add New Dynamic DNS Service Provider : WAN IP: User Name : Password : Domain Name:	DynDNS (www.dyndns.org) [USA] Sign up 61.64.143.5 Automatically WAN1 level1@ddc.com eeveenee levelone . dvndns.org v	OK Cancel
🕙 Done			🧼 Internet

# Modify dynamic DNS

Step 1: Find the item you want to change and click Modify.

Step 2: Enter the new information in the Modify Dynamic DNS window.

Step 3: Click OK to change the settings or click Cancel to discard changes.

G · O · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 ·	📩 🚱 🔗 - 🌺 🗔 -	**			🥂 – 8 ×
Multi-homing Router		Dynai	mic DNS		
System         Admin         Setting         Date/Time         Multiple Subnet         Hacker Alert         Blaster Alert         Blaster Alert         Route Table         DHCP         Host Table         Dynamic DNS         Language         Permitted IPs         Logout         Software Update         Interface         Address         Service         Schedule         Content Filtering         Virtual Server         VPN         Policy         Log         Alarm	Modify Dynamic DNS Service Provider : WAN IP: User Name : Password : Domain Name:	DynDNS (www.dyndns 192.168.10.106 aaronlai Ievel1	s.org) [U.S.A.] ▼ Sigr ✓ Automatically WAN . dyndns.tv ▼	n up √1 ✓ OK Canc	
Statistics Status				😵 Interne	

# **Delete Dynamic DNS**

- Step 1: Find the item you want to change and click **Delete**.
- **Step 2:** A confirmation pop-up box will appear, click OK to delete the settings or click Cancel to discard changes.



# Language

Admins can configure the Multi-Homing Gateway Select the Language version.

- **Step 1.** Select the Language version (**English Version/German Version/ Traditional Chinese Version** or **Simplified Chinese Version**).
- **Step 2.** Click **[OK]** to set the Language version or click **Cancel** to discard

changes.



# Permitted IPs

Only the authorized IP address is permitted to manage the Multi-Homing Gateway.



# Add Permitted IP Address

- Step 1. Click New Entry button.
- Step 2. In IP Address field, enter the LAN IP address or WAN IP address.
  - IP address : Enter the LAN IP address or WAN IP address.
  - Netmask : Enter the netmask of LAN/WAN.
  - Ping : Select this to allow the external network to ping the IP Address of the Firewall.
  - Http : Check this item, Web User can use HTTP to connect to the Setting window of Multi-Homing Gateway.

Step 3. Click OK to add Permitted IP or click Cancel to discard changes.



# **Modify Permitted IP Address**

- **Step 1.** In the table of **Permitted IPs**, highlight the IP you want to modify, and then click **Modify**.
- Step 2. In Modify Permitted IP, enter new IP address.

**Step 3.** Click **OK** to modify or click **Cancel** to discard changes.

🔇 • 🔘 · 🖹 🗟 🟠 🔎	📩 🥹 🗟 • 🍓 🔁 • 🦓 👘			🥂 – ð ×
Multi-homing Router		Permitted IPs		
System	Modify Permitted IPs			
Admin	Name	DDC		
Setting	IP Address	172.16.1.100		
Date/Time	Netmask	255.255.255.255		
Multiple Subnet	Service	✓Ping ✓HTTP		
Hacker Alert			<u>میں مصدر ا</u>	
Blaster Alert			OK Can	el 🔰
Route Table				
DHCP				
Host Table				
Dynamic DNS				
Language				
Permitted IPs				
Logout				
Software Update				
Interface				
Address				
Service				
Schedule				
Virtual Server				
VPN				
Policy				
Log				
Alarm				
Statistics				
Status				
C Done			🌍 Intern	et

## **Remove Permitted IP addresses**

- Step 1. In the table of Permitted IPs, highlight the IP you want to remove, and then click Remove.
- Step 2. In Remove Permitted IP, enter new IP address.

Step 3. In the confirm window, click OK to remove or click Cancel to discard changes.



# Logout

Select this option to the device's **Logout** the Multi-Homing Gateway. This function protects your system while you are away.

Step 1. Click Logout the Multi-Homing Gateway.

**Step 2.** Click OK to logout or click Cancel to discard the change.

Multi-homing Router       Logout         Admin Setting       Logout         Admin Date/Time       Image: Comparison of the set of th	🌀 · 🕤 · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 📩 ·	🚱 🗟 • 💺 🚍 • 🍇	🥂 – Æ ×
System         Admin         Setting         Date Time         Multiple Subnet         Hacker Alert         Blaster Alert         Route Table         Organic DNS         Language         Permitted IPs         Legout         Software Update         Interface         Address         Service         Schedule         Content Filtering         Virtual Server         VPN         Policy         Log         Atarm         Statistics	Router	Logout	
	System         Admin         Setting         Date/Time         Multiple Subnet         Hacker Alert         Blaster Alert         Blaster Alert         Blaster Alert         DHCP         Host Table         Dynamic DNS         Language         Permitted IPs         Logout         Software Update         Interface         Address         Service         Schedule         Content Filtering         Virtual Server         VPN         Policy         Log         Alarm         Statistics         Status	Microsoft Internet Explorer Are you sure you want to logout ? CK Cancel	

# Software Update

Under Software Update, the admin may update the device's software with a newer software.



# Interface

In this section, the **Administrator** can set up the IP addresses for the office network. The Administrator may configure the IP addresses of the LAN network, the WAN 1/2 network, and the DMZ network. The netmask and gateway IP addresses are also configured in this section.



#### Entering the Interface menu:

Click on **Interface** in the left menu bar. Then click on **LAN** below it. The current settings of the interface addresses will appear on the screen.

🗿 FBR-2000 2-WAN Broadband Router	- Microsoft Internet Explorer			E 8 🛛
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help				1
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💌 🗟 🚮 🔎	🔾 Search 🤸 Favorites 🥝	🗟 • 🍓 🔜 🥸		
Address 🕘 http://192.168.1.1/				🗸 🄁 Go 🛛 Links 🌺
Multi-homing Router		LAN		
System	I AN Interface			
Interface	IP Address	192 168 1 1		
LAN	Netmask	255 255 255 0		
WAN DM7				
Address	Enable	Ping	HTTP	
Service				
Schedule Content Filtering				OK Cancel
Virtual Server				
VPN				
Log				
Alarm				
Statistics Statue				
Status				
ê				Internet

# **Configuring the Interface Settings**

## **Internal Interface**

Using the LAN **Interface**, the Administrator sets up the LAN network. The LAN network will use a private IP scheme. The private IP network will not be routable on the Internet.

**IP Address:** The private IP address of the Multi-Homing Gateway's LAN network is the IP address of the LAN port of the device. The default IP address is 192.168.1.1.

If the new LAN IP Address is not 192.168.1.1, the Administrator needs to set the IP Address on the computer to be on the same subnet as the Multi-Homing Gateway and restart the System to make the new IP address effective. For example, if the Multi-Homing Gateway's new LAN IP Address is 172.16.0.1, then enter the new LAN IP Address 172.16.0.1 in the URL field of browser to connect to Multi-Homing Gateway.

**NetMask:** This is the netmask of the LAN network. The default netmask of the device is 255.255.255.0.

**Ping:** Select this to allow the LAN network to ping the IP Address of the Multi-Homing Gateway. If set to enable, the device will respond to ping packets from the LAN network.

Http: Select this to allow the device WEBUI to be accessed from the LAN network.



## Entering the Interface menu

Click on **Interface** in the left menu bar. Then click on **WAN** below it. The current settings of the interface addresses will appear on the screen.

FBR-2000 2-WAN Broadband Re	outer - Microsoft Interne	t Explorer			
File Edit View Favorites Tools	Help				<b>A</b> *
🕝 Back 🝷 🕥 - 💌 🗟 🎸	Search 🤺 Favori	tes 🚱 🔗 🎍 📄			
Address 🕘 http://192.168.1.1/					🖌 🏹 Go 🛛 Links 🎽
Multi-homil Router	ng		WAN		
System	Balance Mode : 🛛	Auto 💌			
Interface LAN	WAN No. Conne 1 Stat	ct Mode IP Address tic IP 61.11.11.11	Saturated Connections	s Ping HTTP Config Ø Ø Modi	gure Priority
DMZ	2 Stat	tic IP 211.22.22.22	1 🛛	🏈 🔮 Modi	2 🖌
Address Service					
Schedule Content Filtering					
Virtual Server VPN					
Policy Log					
Alarm Statistics					
Status					
E Done					💋 Internet

#### Balance Mode :

**Auto**: The Multi-Homing Gateway distributes the WAN 1/2 download by proportion automatically according to the WAN download bandwidth. (For users who are using various download bandwidth.)

**Round-Robin**: The Multi-Homing Gateway distributes the WAN 1/2 download bandwidth 1:1, in other words, it selects the agent by order. (For users who are using same download

bandwidths.)

**By Traffic**: The Multi-Homing Gateway distributes the WAN 1/2 download bandwidth by traffic. (For users who are connected to the Internet via a fixed WAN IP address.

**By Session**: The Multi-Homing Gateway distributes the WAN 1/2 download bandwidth by session. (For users who are connected to the Internet via a fixed WAN IP address.

**By Packet:** The Multi-Homing Gateway distributes the WAN 1/2 download bandwidth by packet and saturated connection. (For users who are connected to the Internet via a fixed WAN IP address.

WAN No: Set the WAN 1/2 order.

**Connect Mode**: Display the current connection mode: PPPoE, Dynamic IP Address (Cable Modem User) or Static IP Address.

**IP Address:** Display the current WAN IP Address.

**Saturated Connections**: Set the number for saturation whenever session numbers reach it, the Multi-Homing Gateway switches to the next agent on the list. This function is only applicable for **By Session** mode.

Enable: Display Ping/Http functions of WAN 1/2 to show if they are enabled or disabled.

Configure: Click Modify to modify WAN 1/2 settings.

**Priority**: Set priority of WAN 1/2 for Internet Access.

## WAN 1/2 Interface

Using the **WAN 1/2 Interface**, the Administrator sets up the **WAN 1/2** network. These IP Addresses are real public IP Addresses, and are routable on the Internet.

**For PPPoE (ADSL User):** This option is for PPPoE users who are required to enter a username and password in order to connect, such as ADSL users.

**Current Status:** Displays the current line status of the PPPoE connection.

IP Address: Displays the IP Address of the PPPoE connection

Username: Enter the PPPoE username provided by the ISP.

Password: Enter the PPPoE password provided by the ISP.

#### IP Address provided by ISP:

Dynamic: Select this if the IP address is automatically assigned by the ISP.

**Fixed:** Select this if you were given a static IP address. Enter the IP address that is given to you by your ISP.

Max. Upstream/Downstream Bandwidth: The bandwidth provided by ISP.

#### Service-On-Demand:

**Auto Disconnect**: The PPPoE connection will automatically disconnect after a length of idle time (no activities). Enter in the amount of idle minutes before disconnection. Enter '0' if you do not want the PPPoE connection to disconnect at all.

**Ping:** Select this to allow the WAN 1 network to ping the IP Address of the Multi-Homing Gateway. This will allow people from the Internet to be able to ping the Multi-Homing Gateway. *If set to enable, the device will respond to echo request packets from the WAN 1/2 network.* 

**Http:** Select this to allow the device WEBUI to be accessed from the WAN 1 network. This will allow the WEBUI to be configured from a user on the Internet. Keep in mind that the device always requires a username and password to enter the WEBUI.



For Dynamic IP Address (Cable Modem User): This option is for users who are

automatically assigned an IP address by their ISP, such as cable modem users. The

following fields apply:

**IP Address:** The dynamic IP address obtained by the Multi-Homing Gateway from the ISP will be displayed here. This is the IP address of the WAN 1 (WAN) port of the device.

MAC Address: This is the MAC Address of the device.

**Hostname:** This will be the name assign to the device. Some cable modem ISP assign a specific hostname in order to connect to their network. Please enter the hostname here. If not required by your ISP, you do not have to enter a hostname.

**Ping:** Select this to allow the WAN 1 network to ping the IP Address of the Multi-Homing Gateway. This will allow people from the Internet to be able to ping the Multi-Homing Gateway. *If set to enable, the device will respond to echo request packets from the WAN 1 network.* 

Max. Upstream/Downstream Bandwidth: The bandwidth provided by ISP.

**Http:** Select this to allow the device WEBUI to be accessed from the WAN 1 network. This will allow the WebUI to be configured from a user on the Internet. Keep in mind that the device always requires a username and password to enter the WebUI.

🔇 • 🔘 · 🖹 🗟 🟠 🔎	📩 🥹 😂 😒 י				2 - 6 ×
Multi-homing Router		W	AN		-
System Interface LAN WAN DMZ Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	WAN1 Interface         Service :       DNS ♥ DN         Data         Wait 1       seconds be         ● PPPoE (ADSL User)         ● Dynamic IP Address         ● Static IP Address         IP Address         MAC Address         Hostname         Domain Name         User Name (Required by         Max. Downstream Bandwid         Enable	IS Server IP Address : omain name : etween sending alive pace (Cable Modem User) (Cable M	168.95.1.1	soist soist s not checking) Renew Release Clone MAC Address Clone MAC Address	el )
e l				🐨 Interne	t

For Static IP Address: This option is for users who are assigned a static IP Address from

their ISP. Your ISP will provide all the information needed for this section such as IP

Address, Netmask, Gateway, and DNS. Use this option also if you have more than one public IP Address assigned to you.

**IP Address:** Enter the static IP address assigned to you by your ISP. This will be the public IP address of the WAN 1 port of the device.

Netmask: This will be the Netmask of the WAN 1 network. (i.e. 255.255.255.0)

Default Gateway: This will be the Gateway IP address.

**Domain Name Server (DNS):** This is the IP Address of the DNS server. Max. Upstream/Downstream Bandwidth: The bandwidth provided by ISP.

**Ping:** Select this to allow the WAN 1 network to ping the IP Address of the Multi-Homing Gateway. This will allow people from the Internet to be able to ping the Multi-Homing Gateway. *If set to enable, the device will respond to echo request packets from the WAN 1 network.* 

**WebUI:** Select this to allow the device WEBUI to be accessed from the WAN 1 network. This will allow the WebUI to be configured from a user on the Internet. Keep in mind that the device always requires a username and password to enter the WebUI.

🔇 • 🔘 - 🗷 🗟 🏠 🔎 •	🛠 🚱 🗟 · 🍓 🔜 · 🍇 👘			🦉 – 🗗 ×
Multi-homing Router		WAN		
System Interface LAN WAN DMZ Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	WAN1 Interface Service : DNS ♥ DNS Server Domain nar Wait 0 seconds between set ● PPPoE (ADSL User) ● Dynamic IP Address (Cable N ● Static IP Address IP Address Netmask Default Gateway DNS Server 1 DNS Server 2 Max. Downstream Bandwidth Max. Upstream Bandwidth Enable	IP Address :       139.175.55.244         me :       Image: Constraint of the second sec	Assist Assist 0 : means not checking) • HTTP OK Canci	
C Done			🥑 Internet	í.


The Administrator uses the **DMZ Interface** to set up the DMZ network. The DMZ network consists of server computers such as FTP, SMTP, and HTTP (web). These server computers are put in the DMZ network so they can be isolated from the Internal (LAN) network traffic. Broadcast messages from the Internal network will not cross over to the DMZ network to cause congestions and slow down these servers. This allows the server computers to work efficiently without any slowdowns.

G · 🕤 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	👷 🥹 🗟 · 🍇 📄			🥂 – 8 ×
Multi-homing Router		DMZ		
System Interface LAN WAN DMZ Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	DMZ Interface NAT IP Address Netmask Enable	<ul> <li>✓</li> <li>192.168.11.1</li> <li>255.255.255.0</li> <li>✓ Ping</li> </ul>	♥ HTTP	Cancel
C Done			🥑 Ir	iternet

**DMZ Interface**: Display DMZ NAT Mode /DMZ TRANSPARENT Mode functions of DMZ to show if they are enabled or disabled.

**IP Address:** The private IP address of the Multi-Homing Gateway's DMZ interface. This will be the IP address of the DMZ port. The IP address the Administrator chooses will be a private IP address and cannot use the same network as the WAN or Internal network.

NetMask: This will be the netmask of the DMZ network.

**Ping:** Select this to allow the DMZ network to ping the IP Address of the Multi-Homing Gateway. This will allow people from the Internet to be able to ping the Multi-Homing Gateway. *If set to enable, the device will respond to echo request packets from the DMZ network.* 

**Http:** Select this to allow the device WEBUI to be accessed from the DMZ network. This will allow the WebUI to be configured from a user on the Internet. Keep in mind that the device always requires a username and password to enter the WebUI.

# Address

The Multi-Homing Gateway allows the Administrator to set Interface addresses of the Internal network, Internal network group, WAN network, WAN network group, DMZ and DMZ group.

#### What is the Address Table?

An IP address in the Address Table can be an address of a computer or a sub network. The Administrator can assign an easily recognized name to an IP address. Based on the network it belongs to, an IP address can be an internal IP address, WAN IP address or DMZ IP address. If the Administrator needs to create a control policy for packets of different IP addresses, he can first add a new group in the Internal Network Group or the WAN Network Group and assign those IP addresses into the newly created group. Using group addresses can greatly simplify the process of building control policies.

With easily recognized names of IP addresses and names of address groups shown in the address table, the Administrator can use these names as the source address or destination address of control policies. The address table should be built before creating control policies, so that the Administrator can pick the names of correct IP addresses from the address table when setting up control policies.



#### Entering the LAN window

**Step 1.** Click LAN under the **Address** menu to enter the LAN window. The current setting information such as the name of the LAN network, IP and Netmask addresses will show on the screen.

🌀 • 🕥 - 🖹 🗟 🏠	P 🛧 🛛 🖉 🎍 🗖	- 🖏			🦉 _ & ×
Multi-homi Router	Ing	L	.AN		
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name Inside_Any	IP / Netmask 0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	MAC Address	Configure In Use	
E Done				🌍 Internet	

#### Adding a new LAN Address

Step 1. In the LAN window, click the New Entry button.

Step 2. In the Add New Address window, enter the settings of a new LAN network address.

Step 3. Click OK to add the specified LAN network or click Cancel to cancel the changes.

🔇 • 🔘 - 🗷 🖻 🏠 🔎	🛧 🛛 🖉 · 🍇 🗟 · 🎕	8			🦉 – ð ×
Router	J		LAN		
System	Add New Address				
Interface	Name	001			
Address	IP Address	192.168.1.100			
LAN Group	Netmask	255.255.255.255			
WAN	MAC Address		Clone MAC Address		
WAN Group	Get static IR address fr		Giune mae Address j		
DMZ DMZ Crown		on DHCF Server			
Service				OK Cancel	
Schedule					
Content Filtering Virtual Server					
VPN					
Policy					
Alarm					
Statistics					
Status					
Done				🌍 Internet	

#### Modifying an LAN Address

- **Step 1.** In the LAN window, locate the name of the network to be modified. Click the **Modify** option in its corresponding **Configure** field. The **Modify Address** window appears on the screen immediately.
- Step 2. In the Modify Address window, fill in the new addresses.
- **Step 3.** Click **OK** to save changes or click **Cance** to discard changes.

🌀 · 🕥 · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎	🛠 🥹 🎯 😪 🖓	3		🐮 – 🗗 ×
Multi-homing Router			LAN	
System	Modify Address			
Interface	Name	001		
Address	IP Address	192,168,1,100		
LAN LAN Group	Netmask	255 255 255 255	-	
WAN	MAC Address			
WAN Group	MAC Address	And the second second second	Cione MAC Address	
DMZ	Get static IP address fr	om DHCP Server	r.	4
DMZ Group			OK Cancel	-
Service			UN CONCOL	24 A
Content Filtering				
Virtual Server				
VPN				
Log				
Alarm				
Statistics				
Status				
E Done			🔮 Internet	

#### **Removing an LAN Address**

- Step 1. In the LAN window, locate the name of the network to be removed. Click the **Remove** option in its corresponding **Configure** field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the address or click Cancel to discard changes.





#### Entering the LAN Group window

The LAN Addresses may be combined together to become a group.

Click LAN **Group** under the **Address** menu to enter the LAN Group window. The current setting information for the LAN network group appears on the screen.

G · 🕞 · 🖹 🖻 🏠	🔎 📩 🥹 🙆 · 🖓			n – म ×
Multi-hom Router	ing	LAN Group		
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name	Member	Configure	
C Done			🥑 Internet	

#### Adding an LAN Group

- Step 1. In the LAN Group window, click the New Entry button to enter the Add New Address Group window.
- Step 2. In the Add New Address Group window:
  - Available Address: list the names of all the members of the LAN network.
  - **Selected Address:** list the names to be assigned to the new group.
  - **Name:** enter the name of the new group in the open field.
- Step 3. Add members: Select names to be added in Available Address list, and click the Add>> button to add them to the Selected Address list.
- **Step 4. Remove members:** Select names to be removed in the Selected Address list, and click the **<<Remove** button to remove these members from Selected Address list.
- Step 5. Click OK to add the new group or click Cancel to discard changes.

G · O · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 🛧 🤇	🛛 🔗 - 🍃 🔄 - 🍇			🥂 – ð ×
Router		LAN Grou	р	
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Address Group Name:	LANI CRemove Add >>>	Selected address →     001     002     003     O     O     O     O     O     O     O     O     Cancel	
C Doue			🥑 Intern	al

### Modifying an LAN Group

- **Step 1.** In the LAN **Group** window, locate the network group desired to be modified and click its corresponding **Modify** option in the **Configure** field.
- Step 2. A window displaying the information of the selected group appears:
  - Available Address: list names of all members of the LAN network.
  - **Selected Address:** list names of members which have been assigned to this group.
- Step 3. Add members: Select names in Available Address list, and click the Add>> button to add them to the Selected Address list.
- Step 4. Remove members: Select names in the Selected Address list, and click the <<Remove button to remove these members from the Selected Address list.
- Step 5. Click OK to save changes or click Cancel to discard changes.

🌀 • 🔘 · 🔺 🖻 🏠 🔎 🌟 🌜	3 🗟 • 👹 🔜 • 🖓 👘			
Kouter		LAN Grou	ıp	
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Modify Address Group Name :	LAN1	Content of the second seco	
C Doue			🥑 Inte	smec

#### **Removing an LAN Group**

- Step 1. In the LAN Group window, locate the group to be removed and click its corresponding **Remove** option in the **Configure** field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the group or click Cancel to discard changes.





#### **Entering the WAN window**

Click **WAN** under the **Address** menu to enter the WAN window. The current setting information, such as the name of the WAN network, IP and Netmask addresses will show on the screen.

G · O · 🖹 🗟 🏠	P 🛧 🛛 🖉 · 🍇 🗔 · 🍇	8		n – म ×
Multi-homi Router	ng	WAN		
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name       Outside_Any	IP / Netmask 0.0.0.0/0.0.0.0	Configure In Use	
Done			🖉 Interne	et

#### Adding a new WAN Address

- Step 1. In the WAN window, click the New Entry button.
- Step 2. In the Add New Address window, enter the settings for a new WAN network address.
- Step 3. Click OK to add the specified WAN network or click Cancel to discard changes.



#### Modifying an WAN Address

- Step 1. In the WAN table, locate the name of the network to be modified and click the **Modify** option in its corresponding **Configure** field.
- Step 2. The Modify Address window will appear on the screen immediately. In the Modify Address window, fill in new addresses.
- Step 3. Click OK to save changes or click Cancel to discard changes.

G · O · 🖻 🖻 🏠 🔎	📩 🚱 🔗 🍓 🗔 •	28		🥂 – ð ×
Multi-homing Router		WAN		
System	Modify Address			
Interface	Name	004		
Address	IP Address	61.11.11		
LAN Group	Netmask	255.255.255.255		
WAN				
WAN Group			OK Canc	el
DMZ DMZ Crewn				
Service				
Schedule				
Content Filtering				
VIITual Server				
Policy				
Log				
Statistics				
Status				
E Done			🔹 🖉 Interne	t

#### **Removing an WAN Address**

- Step 1. In the WAN table, locate the name of the network to be removed and click the Remove option in its corresponding Configure field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the address or click Cancel to discard changes.





#### **Entering the WAN Group window**

Click the **WAN Group** under the **Address** menu bar to enter the WAN window. The current settings for the WAN network group(s) will appear on the screen.



#### Adding an WAN Group

- Step 1. In the WAN Group window, click the New Entry button and the Add New Address Group window will appear.
- Step 2. In the Add New Address Group window the following fields will appear:
  - Name: enter the name of the new group.
  - Available Address: List the names of all the members of the WAN network.
  - **Selected Address:** List the names to assign to the new group.
- Step 3. Add members: Select the names to be added in the Available Address list, and click the Add>> button to add them to the Selected Address list.
- Step 4. Remove members: Select the names to be removed in the Selected Address list, and click the <<Remove button to remove them from the Selected Address list.

Step 5. Click OK to add the new group or click Cancel to discard changes.

🌀 • 🔘 · 💌 🖻 🏠 🔑 🛠 ਓ	3 🔗 👹 🗟 • 🖓			
Multi-homing Router		WAN Grou	ıp	
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Address Group Name: <pre>( — Available address → 004 005 006</pre>	WAN_1	Contraction of the second	
Cone			🔮 Intern	iet

#### Modify an WAN Group

- Step 1. In the WAN Group window, locate the network group to be modified and click its corresponding Modify button in the Configure field.
- Step 2. A window displaying the information of the selected group appears:
  - Available Address: list the names of all the members of the WAN network.
  - Selected Address: list the names of the members that have been assigned to this group.
- Step 3. Add members: Select the names to be added in the Available Address list, and click the Add>> button to add them to the Selected Address list.
- Step 4. Remove members: Select the names to be removed in the Selected Address list, and click the <<Remove button to remove them from the Selected Address list.
- Step 5. Click OK to save changes or click Cancel to discard changes.



#### **Removing an WAN Group**

- Step 1. In the WAN Group window, locate the group to be removed and click its corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the group or click Cancel to discard changes.





#### Entering the DMZ window:

Click **DMZ** under the **Address** menu to enter the **DMZ** window. The current setting information such as the name of the internal network, IP, and Netmask addresses will show on the screen.

3 · 0 · 🖻 🗟 🏠	۵۰ 🍃 🛠 😸	<b>∃</b> • ‰		2 - 8 ×
Multi-homi Router	ng	D	0MZ	
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name	IP / Netmask 0.0.0.0/0.0.00	MAC Address	Configure In Use
🙆 Done				🔮 Internet

#### Adding a new DMZ Address:

Step 1. In the DMZ window, click the New Entry button.

Step 2. In the Add New Address window, enter the settings for a new DMZ address.

**Step 3.** Click **OK** to add the specified DMZ or click **Cancel** to discard changes.

🔇 • 🕤 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	📩 🚱 🔗 🍓 🗔 - 🎕			🥂 – ē ×
Router			DMZ	
System Interface Address	Add New Address Name	007		
LAN LAN Group WAN	IP Address Netmask	172.16.1.100 255.255.255.255		
WAN Group DMZ	MAC Address	om DHCP Server	Clone MAC Address	
DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status			OK	Cancel
ê				👂 Internet

#### Modifying a DMZ Address:

- Step 1. In the DMZ window, locate the name of the network to be modified and click the Modify option in its corresponding Configure field.
- Step 2. In the Modify Address window, fill in new addresses.
- Step 3. Click OK on save the changes or click Cancel to discard changes.

Multi-homing Router			DMZ			
System	Modify Address					
Interface	Name	007				
Address	IP Address	172.16.1.100				
LAN Group	Netmask	255 255 255 255				
WAN	MAC Address			<u> </u>		
WAN Group	MAC Address		Clone MAC Address			
DMZ	Get static IP address fr	om DHCP Server	r.			
DMZ Group			OK C	ancel		
Schedule				moor		
Content Filtering						
Virtual Server						
VPN						
Log						
Alarm						
Statistics						
Status						
E Done			🖉 Inte	ernet		

#### Removing a DMZ Address:

- Step 1. In the DMZ window, locate the name of the network to be removed and click the **Remove** option in its corresponding **Configure** field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the address or click Cancel to discard changes.





#### Entering the DMZ Group window:

Click **DMZ Group** under the **Address** menu to enter the **DMZ** window. The current settings information for the DMZ group appears on the screen.



#### Adding a DMZ Group:

- Step 1. In the DMZ Group window, click the New Entry button.
- Step 2. In the Add New Address Group window:
  - Available Address: list names of all members of the DMZ.
  - Selected Address: list names to assign to a new group.
- **Step 3. Name:** enter a name for the new group.
- Step 4. Add members: Select the names to be added from the Available Address list, and click the Add>> button to add them to the Selected Address list.
- Step 5. Remove members: Select names to be removed from the Selected Address list, and click the <<Remove button to remove them from the Selected Address list.
- Step 6. Click OK to add the new group or click Cancel to discard changes.



### Modifying a DMZ Group:

- Step 1. In the DMZ Group window, locate the DMZ group to be modified and click its corresponding Modify button in the Configure field.
- Step 2. A window displaying information about the selected group appears:
  - Available Address: list the names of all the members of the DMZ.
  - Selected Address: list the names of the members that have been assigned to this group.
- Step 3. Add members: Select names to be added from the Available Address list, and click the Add>> button to add them to the Selected Address list.
- Step 4. Remove members: Select names to be removed from the Selected Address list, and click the <<Remove button to remove them from Selected Address list.
- Step 5. Click OK to save changes or click Cancel to cancel editing.

C • C • 🖻 🖻 🏠 🔎 🜟 🍕	3 🗟 • 👹 🗟 • 🖓 👘				
Router	oming ter		DMZ Group		
System Interface Address LAN LAN Group WAN WAN Group DMZ DMZ Group Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Modify Address Group Name: ( Available address> 007 008 009	DMZ_1	✓—Selected address → 007 008 009		
Cono Cono				1100	

#### Removing a DMZ Group:

- Step 1. In the DMZ Group window, locate the group to be removed and click its corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the group.



## Service

In this section, network services are defined and new network services can be added. There are three sub menus under Service which are: **Pre-defined**, **Custom**, and **Group**. The Administrator can simply follow the instructions below to define the protocols and port numbers for network communication applications. Users then can connect to servers and other computers through these available network services.

#### What is Service?

TCP and UDP protocols support varieties of services, and each service consists of a TCP Port or UDP port number, such as TELNET(23), SMTP(21), POP3(110),etc. The 10/100M 2 WAN /1 LAN /1 DMZ Multi-Homing Gateway defines two services: pre-defined service and custom service. The common-use services like TCP and UDP are defined in the pre-defined service and cannot be modified or removed. In the custom menu, users can define other TCP port and UDP port numbers that are not in the pre-defined menu according to their needs. When defining custom services, the client port ranges from 1024 to 65535 and the server port ranges from 0 to 1023.

#### How do I use Service?

The Administrator can add new service group names in the **Group** option under **Service** menu, and assign desired services into that new group. Using service group the Administrator can simplify the processes of setting up control policies. For example, there are 10 different computers that want to access 5 different services on a server, such as HTTP, FTP, SMTP, POP3, and TELNET. Without the help of service groups, the Administrator needs to set up 50 (10x5) control policies, but by applying all 5 services to a single group name in the **service** field, it takes only one control policy to achieve the same effect as the 50 control policies.



#### **Entering a Pre-defined window**

Click **Service** on the menu bar on the left side of the window. Click **Pre-defined** under it. A window will appear with a list of services and their associated IP addresses. This list cannot be modified.



## Custom

#### **Entering the Custom window**

Click **Service** on the menu bar on the left side of the window. Click **Custom** under it. A window will appear with a table showing all services currently defined by the Administrator.



#### Adding a new Service

Step 1 In the Custom window, click the New Entry button and a new service table appears.

G • ⊙ • 🖻 🖻 🏠 🔎 🤉 Multi-homing Router	🖈 🛛 🗟 - 📚 🖻 - 🕸	custom	<i>₩</i> - <del>-</del> - <del>-</del> - <del>-</del> - <del>-</del>
System	Add User Defined Service		
Interface	Service NAME ·	eDonkeu	
Address	# Protocol	Client Port	Server Port
Service	1 O TCP O UDP O Other 6	1024 : 65535	4661 : 4665
Pre-defined	2 O TCP O UDP O Other 17	1024 : 65535	4661 : 4665
Custom	3 O TCP O UDP O Other 0	1024 : 65535	0 : 0
Group	4 O TCP O UDP O Other 0	1024 : 65535	0 : 0
Schedule	5 O TCP O UDP  O Other  O	1024 : 65535	0 : 0
Content Filtering	6 ○ TCP ○ UDP ⊙ Other 0	1024 : 65535	0 : 0
Virtual Server	7 O TCP O UDP O Other 0	1024 : 65535	0 : 0
VPN	8 O TCP O UDP O Other 0	1024 : 65535	0 : 0
Log Alarm Statistics Status			OK Cancel

**Step 2** In the new service table:

- New Service Name: This will be the name referencing the new service.
- Protocol: Enter the network protocol type to be used, such as TCP, UDP, or Other (please enter the number for the protocol type).
- **Client Port:** enter the range of port number of new clients.
- Server Port: enter the range of port number of new servers.

The client port ranges from 1024 to 65535 and the server port ranges from 0 to 1023.

Step 3 Click OK to add new services, or click Cancel to cancel.

#### **Modifying Custom Services**

- **Step 1.** In the **Custom** table, locate the name of the service to be modified. Click its corresponding **Modify** option in the **Configure** field.
- Step 2. A table showing the current settings of the selected service appears on the screen
- Step 3. Enter the new values.
- Step 4. Click OK to accept editing; or click Cancel.



#### **Removing Custom Services**

- Step 1. In the Custom window, locate the service to be removed. Click its corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** In the **Remove** confirmation pop-up box, click **OK** to remove the selected service or click **Cancel** to cancel action.





#### Accessing the Group window

Click **Service** in the menu bar on the left hand side of the window. Click **Group** under it. A window will appear with a table displaying current service group settings set by the Administrator.



#### **Adding Service Groups**

Step 1. In the Group window, click the New Entry button.

In the Add Service Group window, the following fields will appear:

- Available Services: list all the available services.
- Selected Services: list services to be assigned to the new group.
- **Step 2.** Enter the new group name in the group **Name** field. This will be the name referencing the created group.
- Step 4. To add new services: Select the services desired to be added in the Available Services list and then click the Add>> button to add them to the group.
- Step 5. To remove services: Select services desired to be removed in the Available Services, and then click the <<Remove button to remove them from the group.

Step 6. Click OK to add the new group.


#### **Modifying Service Groups**

- Step 1. In the Group window, locate the service group to be edited. Click its corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- Step 2. In the Mod (modify) group window the following fields are displayed::
  - Available Services: lists all the available services.
  - **Selected Services:** list services that have been assigned to the selected group.
- Step 3. Add new services: Select services in the Available Services list, and then click the Add>> button to add them to the group.
- **Step 4. Remove services:** Select services to be removed in the **Selected Services** list, and then click the **<<Remove** button to remove theses services from the group.

**Step 5.** Click **OK** to save editing changes.

🌀 • 🕥 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎 🛧 🍕	3 🗟 • 👹 🔜 • 🖓			
Kouter		Group		-
SystemInterfaceAddressServicePre-definedCustomGroupScheduleContent FilteringVirtual ServerVPNPolicyLogAlarmStatisticsStatisticsStatus	Modify Service Group Name: ANY APPoverTCP AOL BGP DNS FINGER. FTP GOPHER HTTP HTTPS IKE IMAP InterLocator IRC ▼	Service_1	<ul> <li>&lt; Selected service →</li> <li>FTP</li> <li>HTTP</li> <li>HTTPS</li> </ul>	
Done			OK Cancel	

#### **Removing Service Groups**

- Step 1. In the Group window, locate the service group to be removed and click its corresponding **Remove** option in the **Configure** field.
- **Step 2.** In the **Remove** confirmation pop-up box, click **OK** to remove the selected service group or click **Cancel** to cancel removing.



# Schedule

The Multi-Homing Gateway allows the Administrator to configure a schedule for policies to take affect. By creating a schedule, the Administrator is allowing the Multi-Homing Gateway policies to be used at those designated times only. Any activities outside of the scheduled time slot will not follow the Multi-Homing Gateway policies therefore will likely not be permitted to pass through the Multi-Homing Gateway. The Administrator can configure the start time and stop time, as well as creating 2 different time periods in a day. For example, an organization may only want the Multi-Homing Gateway to allow the internal network users to access the Internet during work hours. Therefore, the Administrator may create a schedule to allow the Multi-Homing Gateway to work Monday-Friday, 8AM-5PM only. During the non-work hours, the Multi-Homing Gateway will not allow Internet access.

#### Accessing the Schedule window

Click on Schedule on the menu bar and the schedule window will appear displaying the

active schedules.



The following items are displayed in this window:

- Name: the name assigned to the schedule
- **Comment:** a short comment describing the schedule
- Configure: modify or remove

#### Adding a new Schedule

Step 1: Click on the New Entry button and the Add New Schedule window will appear.

#### Step 2:

Schedule Name: Fill in a name for the new schedule.

**Period 1:** Configure the start and stop time for the days of the week that the schedule will be active.

**Step 3:** Click Ok to save the new schedule or click Cancel to cancel adding the new schedule.



### Modifying a Schedule

- Step 1: In the Schedule window, find the policy to be modified and click the corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2:** Make needed changes.
- Step 3: Click OK to save changes.

🌀 • 🔘 · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 🛠 🥴	) 🗟 • 🍓 🗟 • 🖓		
Router		Schedule	
System	Modify Schedule		
Interface Address Service	Schedule Name	Schedule_1	
Schedule Content Filtering	Week Day	Period Start Time Stop Time	
Virtual Server	Monday	All day 👻 All day 👻	
VPN	Tuesday	Disable 🛩 Disable 🕶	
Log	Wednesday	Disable 🛩 Disable 🕶	
Alarm	Thursday	Disable 🗸 Disable 🗸	
Statistics	Friday	Disable 🕶 Disable 👻	
Status	Saturday	Disable 🕶 Disable 👻	
	Sunday	Disable 🕶 Disable 🕶	
		OK Cancel	
🙆 Done		🔮 In	:ernet

#### **Removing a Schedule**

- Step 1: In the Schedule window, find the policy to be removed and click the corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- Step 2: A confirmation pop-up box will appear, click on OK to remove the schedule.



# **Content filtering**

The Administrator may setup URL Blocking to prevent LAN network users from accessing a specific website on the Internet. Any web request coming from an LAN network computer to a blocked website will receive a blocked message instead of the website.



#### Entering the URL blocking window

Click on URL Blocking under the Configuration menu bar.

Click on New Entry.



### Adding a URL Blocking policy

- Step 1: After clicking New Entry, the Add New Block String window will appear.
- **Step 2:** Enter the URL of the website to be blocked.

Step 3: Click OK to add the policy. Click Cancel to discard changes.



### Modifying a URL Blocking policy

- Step 1: In the URL Blocking window, find the policy to be modified and click the corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2:** Make the necessary changes needed.
- **Step 3:** Click on **OK** to save changes or click on Cancel to cancel modifications.

G · O · 🖹 🗟 🟠	ې 😓 😓 😒 🕲 🖇	8		🥂 – ð ×
Multi-homi Router	ıg	URL E	Blocking	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering URL Blocking Script Blocking Download Blocking Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Modify URL String URL String	www.yahoo.com		OK Cancel
Cone Cone				🧐 Internet

### Removing a URL Blocking

- Step 1:In the URL Blocking window, find the policy to be removed and click the<br/>corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2:** A confirmation pop-up box will appear, click on **OK** to remove the policy or click on Cancel to discard changes.



#### Blocked URL site:

When a user from the LAN network tries to access a blocked URL, the error below will appear.



## Script Blocking

To let Popup 
ActiveX 
Java 
Cookie in or keep them out.

- Step 1: Click Content Filtering in the menu.
- Step 2: [General Blocking] detective functions.
  - Popup filtering : Prevent the pop-up boxes appearing.
  - ActiveX filtering : Prevent ActiveX packets.
  - Java filtering : Prevent Java packets.
  - Cookie filtering : Prevent Cookie packets.

Step 3: After selecting each function, click the **OK** button below.

3 · 0 · 🖹 🗟 🏠		*	🥂 – # ×
Multi-hom Router	ing	Script Blocking	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering URL Blocking P2P Blocking IM Blocking Download Blocking Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Script Blocking ☑ Popup Blocking ☑ Java Blocking	<ul> <li>ActiveX Blocking</li> <li>Cookie Blocking</li> </ul>	OK Cancel
E Done			🕐 Internet

*When the system detects the setting, the Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway will* 

spontaneously work.

# Virtual Server

The Multi-Homing Gateway separates an enterprise's Intranet and Internet into LAN networks and WAN 1/2 networks respectively. Generally speaking, in order to allocate enough IP addresses for all computers, an enterprise assigns each computer a private IP address, and converts it into a real IP address through Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway's NAT (Network Address Translation) function. If a server which provides service to the WAN 1/2 networks, is located in the LAN networks, outside users can't directly connect to the server by using the server's private IP address.

The Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway's Virtual Server can solve this problem. A virtual server has set the real IP address of the Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway's WAN 1/2 network interface to be the Virtual Server IP. Through the virtual server feature, the Multi-Homing Gateway translates the virtual server's IP address into the private IP address of physical server in the LAN network. When outside users on the Internet request connections to the virtual server, the request will be forwarded to the private LAN server.

Virtual Server owns another feature know as one-to-many mapping. This is when one virtual server IP address on the WAN 1/2 interface can be mapped into LAN network server private IP addresses. This option is useful for Load Balancing, which causes the virtual server to distribute data packets to each private IP addresses (which are the real servers). By sending all data packets to all similar servers, this increases the server's efficiency, reduces risks of server crashes, and enhances servers' stability.

### How to use Virtual Server and mapped IP

Virtual Server and Mapped IP are part of the IP mapping scheme. By applying the incoming policies, Virtual Server and IP mapping work similarly. They map real IP addresses to the physical servers' private IP addresses (which is opposite to NAT), but there still exists some differences:

- Virtual Server can map one real IP to several LAN physical servers while Mapped IP can only map one real IP to one LAN physical server (1-to-1 Mapping). The Virtual Servers' load balance feature can map a specific service request to different physical servers running the same services.
- Virtual Server can only map one real IP to one service/port of the LAN physical servers while Mapped IP maps one real IP to all the services offered by the physical server.

IP mapping and Virtual Server work by binding the IP address of the WAN 1/2 virtual server to the private LAN IP address of the physical server that supports the services. Therefore users from the WAN network can access servers of the LAN network by requesting the service from the IP address provided by Virtual Server.



Internal private IP addresses are translated through NAT (Network Address Translation). If a server is located in the LAN network, it has a private IP address, and outside users cannot connect directly to LAN servers' private IP address. To connect to a LAN network server, outside users have to first connect to a real IP address of the WAN 1/2 network, and the real IP is translated to a private IP of the LAN network. Mapped IP and Virtual Server are the two methods to translate the real IP into private IP. Mapped IP maps IP in one-to-one fashion; that means, all services of one real WAN 1/2 IP address is mapped to one private LAN IP address.

#### **Entering the Mapped IP window**

**Step 1.** Click **Mapped IP** under the **Virtual Server** menu bar and the Mapped IP configuration window will appear.



**Definition:** 

External IP : WAN IP Address.

Map to Virtual IP : The IP address which WAN maps to the virtual network in the server.

**Configure** : To change the setting, click Configure to modify the parameters; click delete to delete the setting.

#### Adding a new IP Mapping

**Step 1.** In the **Mapped IP** window, click the New Entry button. The Add New Mapped IP window will appear.

■ WAN IP: select the WAN public IP address to be mapped.

■ Internal IP: enter the LAN private IP address will be mapped 1-to-1 to the WAN IP address.

Step 2. Click OK to add new IP Mapping or click Cancel to cancel adding.



#### Modifying a Mapped IP

- **Step 1.** In the **Mapped IP** table, locate the Mapped IP you want it to be modified and click its corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** Enter settings in the Modify Mapped IP window.
- **Step 3.** Click **OK** to save change or click **Cancel** to cancel.

🌀 • 🕥 - 🖻 🗟 🏠 🔎	📩 🥹 🎯 🖓 🖓		🥂 – & ×
Multi-homing Router		Mapped IP	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Virtual Server1 Virtual Server1 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Modify Mapped IP WAN IP 21 Map To Virtual IP 15	11.22.22.5 <u>Assist</u> 32.168.1.100	OK Cancel
El Done			🥑 Internet

A

**Note:** A Mapped IP cannot be modified if it has been assigned/used as a destination address of any Incoming policies.

#### **Removing a Mapped IP**

- **Step 1.** In the Mapped IP table, locate the Mapped IP desired to be removed and click its corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** In the Remove confirmation pop-up window, click **OK** to remove the Mapped IP or click **Cancel** to cancel.



## Virtual Server

Virtual server is a one-to-many mapping technique, which maps a real IP address from the WAN interface to private IP addresses of the LAN network. This function provides services or applications defined in the Service menu to enter into the LAN network. Unlike a mapped IP which binds an WAN IP to an LAN IP, virtual server binds WAN IP ports to LAN IP ports.



Definition:

Virtual Server IP : The WAN IP address configured by the virtual server. Click "Click here to configure" button to add new virtual server address.

Service name : The service names that provided by the virtual server.

**Port** : The TCP/UDP ports that present the service items provided by the virtual server.

Server Virtual IP : The virtual IP which mapped by the virtual server.

**Configure** : To change the service configuration, click **Configure** to change the parameters; click **Delete** to delete the configuration.

This virtual server provides four real IP addresses, which means you can setup four virtual servers at most (Setup under the Virtual Server sub-selections Virtual Server 1/2/3/4 in the menu bar on the left hand side.) The administrator can select Virtual Server1/2under Virtual Server selection in the menu bar on the left hand side, click **Server Virtual IP** to add or change the virtual server IP address; click **"Click here to configure"** to add or change the virtual server service configuration.

### Adding a Virtual Server

- **Step 1.** Click an available virtual server from **Virtual Server** in the **Virtual Server** menu bar to enter the virtual server configuration window. In the following, Virtual Server is assumed to be the chosen option:
- **Step 2.** Click the **click here to configure** button and the Add new Virtual Server IP window appears and asks for an IP address from the WAN network.
- **Step 3.** Select an IP address from the drop-down list of available WAN network IP addresses.
- **Step 4.** Click **OK** to add new Virtual Server or click **Cancel** to cancel adding.

G · 🕤 · 🖹 🖻 🏠	🔎 📩 🥹 🔗 · 🖓 🐼			🥂 – æ ×
Multi-hom Router	ing	Virtual Server	1	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Virtual Server IP Virtual Server Real IP	211.22.22.16	Assist	Cancel
C Done			II 🤓 II	nternet

#### **Modifying a Virtual Server IP Address**

- **Step 1.** Click the virtual server to be modified Virtual Server under the **Virtual Server** menu bar. A new window appears displaying the IP address and service of the specified virtual server.
- Step 2. Click on the Virtual Server's IP Address button at the top of the screen.

**Step 3.** Choose a new IP address from the drop-down list.

Step 4. Click OK to save new IP address or click Cancel to discard changes.

G · 🕗 · 🖹 💈 🏠	P 🛧 🛛 🖉 · 🍇 🖻 · 🖓		🥂 – ē ×
Multi-hom Router	ing	Virtual Server1	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Virtual Server IP Virtual Server Real IP	Assist	OK Cancel
ê			Internet

#### **Removing a Virtual Server**

- **Step 1.** Click the virtual server to be removed in the corresponding Virtual Server option under the **Virtual Server** menu bar. A new window displaying the virtual server's IP address and service appears on the screen.
- **Step 2.** Click the Virtual Server's IP Address button at the top of the screen.
- Step 3. Select Disable in the drop-down list in.
- Step 4. Click OK to remove the virtual server.

🔇 · 🕥 · 🖹 🗟 🟠	🔎 📩 🕲 🙆 · 🍇 📄 · 🍇			🥂 – æ ×
Multi-homi Router	Ing	Virtual Ser	ver1	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server2 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Virtual Server IP Virtual Server Real IP	Disable	Assist	OK Cancel
C Doue				Internet

#### Setting the Virtual Server's services

- **Step 1.** For the Virtual Server which has already been set up with an IP address, click the New Service button in the table.
- **Step 2.** In the Virtual Server Configurations window:
  - Server Virtual IP: displays the WAN IP address assigned to the Virtual Server
  - External Service Port: select the port number that the virtual server will use. Changing the Service will change the port number to match the service.
  - Service: select the service from the pull down list that will be provided by the Virtual Server.
  - Internal Server IP : The internal server IP address mapped by the virtual server. Four computer IP addresses can be set at most, and the load can be maintained in a balance.
- **Step 3.** Enter the IP address of the LAN network server(s), to which the virtual server will be mapped. Up to four IP addresses can be assigned at most.

**Step 4.** Click **OK** to save the settings of the Virtual Server.

*Note:* The services in the drop-down list are all defined in the Pre-defined and Custom section of the **Service** menu.

🌀 · 🕥 · 🖹 🗟 🏠	P 🛧 🛛 🖉 · 🖉 🕞 · 🎕	8		🥂 – & ×
Multi-homi Router	ing	Virtual	Server1	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server2 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Virtual Server Configuration Virtual Server Real IP Service External Service Port Load Balance Server 1 2 3 4	on 211.22.22.16 ANY (0-65535) 0-65535	Server Virtual IP 172.16.1.2 172.16.1.3 172.16.1.4 172.16.1.5	OK Cancel
E Done				🔮 Internet

#### **Adding New Virtual Server Service Configuration**

- **Step 1.** Select Virtual Server in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select Virtual Server 1/2/3/4 sub-selections.
- **Step 2.** In Virtual Server 1/2/3/4/3/4 Window, click "Click here to configure" button.
- **Step 3.** Enter the parameters in the Server Virtual IP column.

3 · 🕲 · 🖹 🗟 🟠	🔎 📩 🥹 😂 · 🍇 🔂 · 🍇	8		🥂 -	- 8 ×
Multi-homi Router	ng	Virtual Sei	rver1		
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Virtual Server Configurati Virtual Server Real IP Service External Service Port Load Balance Server 1 2 3 4	on 211.22.22.16 (Custom Service)eDonkey · From-Service(Custom) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	erver Virtual IP 172.16.1.2 172.16.1.3 172.16.1.4 172.16.1.5	OK Cancel	
C Done				🐨 Internet	

**WAN** : Enter the WAN IP address that configured by the virtual server.

Server Virtual IP : Enter the WAN IP address configured by the virtual server.

**Service Name (Port)** : Click the pull-down menu the system will display you the service item port.

External Service Port : The External Service Port that provided by the virtual server.

Service Name : The service names that provided by the virtual server.

**Internal Server IP** : The internal server IP address mapped by the virtual server. Four computer IP addresses can be set at most, and the load can be maintained in a balance.

Click **OK** to execute adding new virtual server service, or click **Cancel** to discard adding. The administrator can click the "**Click here to configure**" button in the Virtual Server window to add the service items of virtual server. Remember to configure the service items of virtual server before you configure Policy, or the service names will not be shown in Policy.

### Modifying the Virtual Server configurations

- **Step 1.** In the Virtual Server window's service table, locate the name of the service desired to be modified and click its corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** In the Virtual Server Configuration window, enter the new settings.

**Step 3.** Click **OK** to save modifications or click **Cancel** to discard changes.

3 · 8 · 🖹 🕈 🏠	ې 😓 😓 🕲 🖉 🖈	8		🥂 – & ×
Multi-homi Router	ra	Virtual	Server1	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server1 Virtual Server1 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Statistics Statistics Status	Virtual Server Configuration Virtual Server Real IP Service External Service Port Load Balance Server 1 2 3 4	on 211.22.22.16 (Custom Service)eDonkey From-Service(Custom)	Server Virtual IP 172.16.1.2 172.16.1.3 172.16.1.4 172.16.1.5	OK Cancel
C Done				Tuternet

**WAN** : Enter the WAN IP address that configured by the virtual server.

Server Virtual IP : Enter the WAN IP address configured by the virtual server.

**Service Name (Port)** : Click the pull-down menu the system will display you the service item port.

**External Service Port**: The External Service Port that provided by the virtual server. **Service Name**: The service names that provided by the virtual server.

Internal Server IP : The internal server IP address mapped by the virtual server. Four

computer IP addresses can be set at most, and the load can be maintained in a balance.Click **OK** to execute the change of the virtual server, or click **Cancel** to discard changes.

If the destination Network in Policy has set a virtual server, it will not be able to change or configure this virtual server, you have to remove this configuration of Policy, and then you can execute the modification or configuration.

#### **Removing the Virtual Server service**

- **Step 1.** In the Virtual Server window's service table, locate the name of the service desired to be removed and click its corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2.** In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click **OK** to remove the service or click **Cancel** to cancel removing.

🔇 · 🔘 - 🖹 🖹 🏠 ,	P 📩 🚱 🙆 - 🍓 🔜 - 🖓			1	- 8 ×
Multi-homin Router	ng	Virtual Se	rver1		
System Interface	Virtual Server Real IP 211.22.2	2.16			
Address	Service	WAN Port	Server Virtual IP	Configure	
Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server	eDonkey	From-Service (Custom)	172.16.1.2 172.16.1.3 172.16.1.4 172.16.1.5	(Modify) (Remove)	
Mapped IP					
Virtual Server1		New Entry			
Virtual Server2	and the second se				
Virtual Server3	Microsoft Inter	net Explorer			
Virtual Server4	(2) Are vo	IL SIRE YOU want to remove 7			
VPN	All and a second	a sare you want to remove :			
Policy		Cancel			
Log					
Alarm					
Status					
Status					
http://192.168.1.1/cgi-bin/gener.cgi?cha	ain=0&type=vip&modify=Delete#=0&vip_type=8&o	ldservice=eDonkey		🌍 Internet	



If the destination Network in Policy has set a virtual server, it will not be able to change or configure this virtual server unless you have already removed this configuration of Policy.

# VPN

The Multi-Homing Gateway's VPN (Virtual Private Network) is set by the System Administrator. The System Administrator can add, modify or remove VPN settings.

#### What is VPN?

To set up a **Virtual Private Network** (VPN), you *don't need* to configure an Access Policy to enable encryption. Just fill in the following settings: VPN Name, Source Subnet, Destination Gateway, Destination Subnet, Authentication Method, Preshare key, Encapsulation and IPSec lifetime. The Multi-Homing Gateways on both ends must use the same **Preshare** key and **IPSec** lifetime to make a **VPN** connection.

PPTP Server: The administrator could enter the relate setting of VPN-PPTP Server. PPTP Client: The administrator could enter the relate setting of VPN-PPTP Client.

## **IPSec Autokey**

The fields in the IPSec window are:

- Name: The VPN name to identify the VPN tunnel definition. The name must be different for the two sites creating the tunnel.
- Gateway IP: The WAN interface IP address of the remote Multi-Homing Gateway.
- **Destination Subnet:** Destination network subnet.
- Algorithm: The display the Algorithm way.
- Status: Connect/Disconnect or Connecting/Disconnecting.
- Configure: Connect, Disconnect, Modify and Delete.



There are 4 examples of VPN setting.

**Example 1.** Create a VPN connection between two Multi-Homing Gateway.

Example 2. Create a VPN connection between the Multi-Homing Gateway and Windows

**Example 3.** Create a VPN connection between two Multi-Homing Gateway using Aggressive mode Algorithm (3 DES and MD5), and data encryption for IPSec Algorithm (3DES and MD5)

**Example 4.** Create a VPN connection between two Multi-Homing Gateway using ISAKMP Algorithm (3DES and MD5), data encryption for IPSec Algorithm (3DES and MD5) and GRE.

The definition of VPN:

**IPSec Algorithm:** The administrator could fill in the following further settings to setup VPN;

IPSec Lifetime and Perfect Forward Secrecy to enable the Multi-Homing

Gateway select or update randomly the unrecognized AutoKey.

■ Preshare Key: The IKE VPN must be defined with a Preshared Key. The Key may be up to 128 bytes long.

#### **ISAKMP** Algorithm

- **Encryption Algorithm:** The device selects 56 bit DES-CBC or 168-bit Triple DES-CBC encryption algorithm. The default algorithm 56 bit DES-CBC.
- **ESP-Authentication Method:** The device -selects MD5 or SHA-1 authentication algorithm. The default algorithm is MD5.
- **IPSec Algorithm:** The device Select Data Encryption + Authentication or Authentication Only.

#### **Data Encryption + Authentication**

- **Encryption Algorithm:** The device selects 56 bit DES-CBC or 168-bit Triple DES-CBC or AES or NULL encryption algorithm. The default algorithm is 56 bit DES-CBC.
- **ESP-Authentication Method:** The device -selects MD5 or SHA-1 authentication algorithm. The default algorithm is MD5.
- IPSec Lifetime: New keys will be generated whenever the lifetime of the old keys is exceeded. The Administrator may enable this feature if needed and enter the lifetime in seconds to re-key. The default is 28800 seconds (eight hours). Selection of small values could lead to frequent re-keying, which could affect performance.

Keep alive IP : Check to allow Remote Client computer IP Address connected to keep alive.

Aggressive mode: The device Select Aggressive mode Algorithm.

GRE/IPSec: The device Select GRE/IPSec (Generic Routing Encapsulation) packet seal

technology.
## G · O · 🖹 🖉 🟠 🔎 ☆ 🤣 🔂 · 🕹 🗟 · 🍪

Router	IPSec Autokey			
Sustam	VPN Auto Keved Tuppel	• •		
Interface	Name			
Address	From Source @ LAN O DMZ			
Service	Use interface WAN1 O WAN2			
Schedule	Subnet / Mask	1 255 255 255 0		
Content Filtering	To Destination	1 200.200.200.0		
Virtual Server	O Desumation			
VPN	Remote Gateway Fixed IP			
IPSec Autokey	Subnet / Mask	1 255.255.255.0		
PPTP Server	O Remote Gateway Dynamic IP			
PPTP Client	Subnet / Mask	/ 255.255.255.0		
Policy	O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynamic IP			
Log	Authentication Method	Preshare 💌		
Alarm	Preshared Key			
Statistics	Encapsulation			
Status	ISAKMP Algorithm			
	ENC Algorithm	DES 🗸		
	AUTH Algorithm	MD5 🗸		
	Group	GROUP1 V		
	IPSec Algorithm			
	O Data Encryption + Authentication			
	ENC Algorithm	DES 🗸		
	AUTH Algorithm	MD5 🗸		
	<ul> <li>Authentication Only</li> </ul>			
	Perfect Forward Secrecy			
	IPSec Lifetime	28800 Seconds		
	Keep alive IP :			
	Aggressive mode			
Done		🔮 Internet		

🦉 – न ×

## **Example 1.** Create a VPN connection between two Multi-Homing Gateways.

Preparation Task: Company A External IP is 61.11.11.11 Internal IP is 192.168.10.X Company B External IP is 211.22.22.22 Internal IP is 192.168.20.X To suppose Company A, 192.168.10.100 create a VPN connection with company B, 192.168.20.100 for downloading the sharing file.

The Gateway of Company A is 192.168.10.1. The settings of company A are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company A's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.10.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.

Image: Strates       Address       Scrates         Scrates       Scrates       Configure         Scrates       Scrates       Scrates         PDTP Scrates       Scrates       Scrates         Scrates       Scrates       Scrates	🔇 · 🕤 · 🖻 🗟 🟠 🔎	) 🛧 𝘌 🔗 · 🍇 🕞 · 🍇			🦉 – ē ×
System       Interface         Address       Schodule         Schodule       Image: Schodule         Content Filtering       Wew Entry         VPN       IPSec Autokey         PPTP Sever       PPTP Cleant         Policy       Log         Log       Alarm         Statistice       Status	Router	9	IPSec Auto	okey	
Trice income	System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name Gateway IP	Destination Subnet	Algorithm Status	Configure

Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_A in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.10.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Keye	ed Tunnel		
Name			VPN_A
From Source	<ul> <li>LAN</li> </ul>	O DMZ	
Use interface	WAN1	O WAN2	
Subnet / M	ask		192.168.10.0 / 255.255.255.0

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company B's subnet IP and mask.

To Destination	1	de la de	
⊙ Remote Gateway Fixed IP	211.22.22.22		
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0	1 255.255.255.0	
○ Remote Gateway Dynamic IP			
Subnet / Mask		1 255.255.255.0	
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynamic	IP		

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💙
Preshared Key	123456789

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose ISAKMP Algorithm. For communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group to connect.

Encapsulation	
ISAKMP Algorithm	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 🗸
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 V
Group	GROUP 1 🗸

Step 6. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
<ul> <li>Data Encryption + Authentic</li> </ul>	tion
ENC Algorithm	DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
O Authentication Only	

Step 7. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy		
IPSec Lifetime	28800	Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.20	0.100

Step 8. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Schedule None ¥

Step 9. Click OK to finish the setting of Company A.

IPSec Autokey						
Name         Gateway IP         Destination Subnet         Algorithm         Status         Configure           VPN_A 211.22.22.22         192.168.20.0         None         Disconnect         Connecting         Medify         Remove						
New Entry						

The Gateway of Company B is 192.168.20.1. The settings of company B are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company B's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.20.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.



Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_B in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.20.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Keyed Tunnel	
Name	VPN_B
From Source 💿 LAN 🔿 DMZ	
Use interface 💿 WAN1 🔿 WAN2	
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0 / 255.255.255.0

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company A's subnet IP and mask, 192.168.10.0 and 255.255.255.0 respectively.

⊙ Remote Gateway Fixed IP	61.11.11.11	
Subnet / Mask	192.168.10.0	1 255.255.255.0
○ Remote Gateway Dynamic IP		
Subnet / Mask		/ 255.255.255.0
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynam	ic IP	

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💌	
Preshared Key	123456789	

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose ISAKMP Algorithm. For communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group to connect.

Encapsulation	
ISAKMP Algorithm	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 🐱
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 V
Group	GROUP1 V

Step 6. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
<ul> <li>Data Encryption + Authentication</li> </ul>	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
O Authentication Only	

Step 7. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy		
IPSec Lifetime	28800	Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.1	0.100

Step 8. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule . Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Schedule	None 🗸
Solidato	Titono .

Step 9. Click OK to finish the setting of Company B.

IPSec Autokey				
Name         Gateway IP         Destination Subnet         Algorithm         Status         Configure           VPN         B         61.11.11.11         192.168.10.0         None         Disconnect         Connecting         Modify         Remove				
New Entry				

**Example 2.** Create a VPN connection between the Multi-Homing Gateway and Windows 2000 VPN Client.

Preparation Task: Company A External IP is 61.11.11.11 Internal IP is 192.168.10.X Company B External IP is 211.22.22.22 Internal IP is 192.168.20.X

To suppose Company A, 192.168.10.100 create a VPN connection with company B, 192.168.20.100 for downloading the sharing file.

The Gateway of Company A is 192.168.10.1. The settings of company A are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company A's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.10.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.

🔇 • 🕥 - 🖻 🗟 🏠 🔎 •	📩 🚱 🔗 - 🍣 🖻 - 🎕			🦉 – ē ×
Multi-homing Router		IPSec Auto	okey	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name Gateway IP	Destination Subnet	Algorithm Status	Configure
ST DOUD				- Anconnoc

Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_A in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.10.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Key	ed Tunnel			
Name			VPN_A	
From Source	O LAN	O DMZ		
Use interface	WAN1	O WAN2		
Subnet / M	ask		192.168.10.0 / 255.255.255.0	

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company B's subnet IP and mask.

To Destination	1	de la de	
⊙ Remote Gateway Fixed IP	211.22.22.22		
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0	1 255.255.255.0	
○ Remote Gateway Dynamic IP			
Subnet / Mask		1 255.255.255.0	
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynamic	IP		

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💙
Preshared Key	123456789

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose ISAKMP Algorithm. For

communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group to connect.

Encapsulation	
ISAKMP Algorithm	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 🗸
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 V
Group	GROUP 1 💌

Step 6. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
O Data Encryption + Authentica	ion
ENC Algorithm	3DES 👻
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
O Authentication Only	

Step 7. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy	
IPSec Lifetime	28800 Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.20.100

Step 8. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Schedule

None

×

Step 9. Click OK to finish the setting of Company A.

IPSec Autokey						
Name VPN_A	Name         Gateway IP         Destination Subnet         Algorithm         Status         Configure           VPN_A 211.22.22.22         192.168.20.0         None         Disconnect         Connecting         Modify         Remove					
New Entry						

The Gateway of Company B is 192.168.20.100. The settings of company B are as the following.



Step 1. Enter Windows XP, click Start and click Execute function.

Step 2. In the Execute window, enter the command, MMC in Open.



Step 3. Enter the Console window, click Console(C) option and click Add/Remove Embedded Management Option.

🚡 Console1	
Action View Favorites Window Help New Ctrl+N Open Open Ctrl+O Save Ctrl+S Save As Add/Remove Snap-in Ctrl+M Options 1 C:\WINDOWS\system32\compmgmt Exit	There are no items to show in this view.
Adds or removes individual snap-ins.	

Step 4. Enter Add/Remove Embedded Management Option window and click Add. In Add/ Remove Embedded Management Option window, click Add to add Create IP Security Policy.

🚡 Console1 - [Console	Root]				
File Action View I	Favorites Window Help				_ <del>_ 6</del> ×
	Name				
	Hane		There are no items to show in this	; view.	7
Add/Remove Snap	-in	? 🗙			
Standalone Extensi	ions				
Use this page to ad	d or remove a standalone Snap-in from	the console.			
Snap-ins added to:	Console Root		Add Standalone Snap-in	2 🛛	
			Available Standalone Snap-ins:		
			Snap-in	Vendor 🔼	
			E Folder	Microsoft Corporation	
			Group Policy Object Editor	Microsoft Corporation	
			Service Indexing Service	Microsoft Corporation, I	
			IP Security Monitor	Microsoft Corporation	
			IP Security Policy Management	Microsoft Corporation	
			Link to Web Address	Microsoft Corporation	
			Local Users and Groups	Microsoft Corporation	
Description			Removable Storage Management	Microsoft Corporation	
			Resultant Set of Policy	Microsoft Corporation	
Add	Remove About		Description Internet Protocol Security (IPSec) Admini policies for secure communication with o	stration. Manage IPSec	
				<b>×</b>	
	OK	Cancel			
				Add Close	
					•
	1				

Step 5. Choose Local Machine (L) for finishing the setting of Add.

🛍 Console1 - [Console Root]		_ <i>-</i> ×
🛱 File Action View Favorites Window Help		_ & ×
Console Root Name		
Add/Remove Snap-in   There are no items to	o show in this view.	
Standalone Extensions	Add Standalone Snap-in	? 🗙
Use this page to add or remove a standalone Snap-in from the console.	Available Standalone Snap-ins:	
Snap-ins added to: 🔄 Console Root 💽 💼	Snap-in Vendor	~
Select Computer or Domain         Select which computer or domain this snap-in will manage         When this console is saved the location will also be saved         Image: Computer of the control will also be saved         Image:	Indexing Service     Inde	, L.,

## Step 6. Finish the setting of Add.

🚡 Console1 - [Console Root\IP Secu	rity Policies on Local Computer		
📸 File Action View Favorites Wind	dow Help		_ & ×
← → 🖻 🖬 🗿 🖧 😫 🏠 :	<u></u>		
Console Root	Name /	Description	Policy Assigned
IP Security Policies on Local Compute	🖄 Client (Respond Only)	Communicate normally (unsecured). Use the default response rule to negotiate with serv	No
	Secure Server (Require Security)	For all IP traffic, always require security using Kerberos trust. Do NOT allow unsecured c	No
	Server (Request Security)	For all IP traffic, always request security using Kerberos trust. Allow unsecured communi	No
< >	<		>

Step 7. Click the right button of mouse in IP Security Policies on Local Machine and choose Create IP Security Policy(C) option.

🚡 Conso	le1 - [Console Root\IP Security Po	olicies on Local Computer	1	
🚡 File 🗌	Action View Favorites Window H	lelp		_ @ ×
$\Leftrightarrow \Rightarrow$	Create IP Security Policy			
Conse -	Manage IP nicer lists and nicer actions		Description	Policy Assigned
- 😓 IF	All Tasks	espond Only)	Communicate normally (unsecured). Use the default response rule to negotiate with serv	No
2	New Window from Here	erver (Require Security) ——Request Security)	erver (Require Security) For all IP traffic, always require security using Kerberos trust. Do NOT allow unsecured communi	No
	New Taskpad View	toquost socure;;		110
5	Refresh Export List			
-	Help	-		
-				
<				
Create an I	P Security policy			



Step 9. Enter the Name of this VPN and optionally give it a brief description.

IP Security Policy Wizard	▶ ?	×
IP Security Policy Name Name this IP Security policy and provide a	a brief description	Ś
Name: Site A to Site B		
Description: IPSec Tunnel Side A to Side B		
	< Back Next > Cancel	

Step 10. Disable Activate the default response rule. And click Next.

IP Security Policy Wizard	? 🛛
Requests for Secure Communication Specify how this policy responds to requests for secure co	ommunication.
The default response rule responds to remote computers to other rule applies. To communicate securely, the computer secure communication.	hat request security, when no r must respond to requests for S
Activate the default response rule.	
< Back	Next > Cancel

Step 11. Completing the IP Security Policy setting and click Finish. Enable Edit properties.



Step 12. In VPN\_B window, click Add and please don't click Use Add Wizard.

Site A to Site B Prope	rties		?×		
Rules General					
Security rules for communicating with other computers					
IP Security rules:					
IP Filter List	Filter Action	Authentication	Tu		
Oynamic>	Default Response	Kerberos	Nc		
<			>		
Add E	dit Remove	🛛 🗆 Use Add W	'izard		
		ОК Са	ancel		

Step 13. In IP Filter List tab, click Add.

New Rule Properties	? 🗙
Authentication Methods Tur IP Filter List	nnel Setting Connection Type   Filter Action
The selected IP filter list affected by this rule.	specifies which network traffic will be
IP Filter Lists:	
Name	Description
O AILICMP Traffic	Matches all ICMP packets betw
O All IP Traffic	Matches all IP packets from this
Add 😡 🛛 Edit	Remove
01	Cancel Apply

Step 14. In IP Filter List window, please don't choose Use Add Wizard and change Name to VPN\_B WAN TO LAN. Click Add.

IP Filter List			? 🗙
An IP filter list is comp	oosed of multiple filters. In ols can be combined into	this way, multiple subr one IP filter.	nets, IP
Name:			
VPN_B WAN TO LAN			
Description:			Add
VPN_B WAN TO LAN			Edit
			Remove
, Filters:		Γυ	se Add Wizard
Mirrored Description	Protocol	Source Port	Destination
<			>
		ОК	Cancel

Step 15. In Filter Properties window, in Source address, click down the arrow to select the specific IP Subnet and fill Company B's IP Address, 211.22.22.22 and Subnet mask, 255.255.255.255. In Destination address, click down the arrow to select the specific IP Subnet and fill Company A's IP Address, 192.168.10.0 and Subnet mask 255.255.255.0. Please disable Mirrored. Also match packets with the exact opposite source and destination addresses.

Filter Properties	<b>?</b> ×
Addressing Protocol Description	
Source address:	
A specific IP Subnet	
IP Address: 211 . 22 . 22 . 22	
Subnet mask: 255 . 255 . 255 . 255	
Destination address:	
A specific IP Subnet	
IP address: 192 . 168 . 10 . 0	
Subnet mask: 255 . 255 . 255 . 255	
Mirrored. Also match packets with the exact opposite source and destination addresses.	
OK Ca	ncel

Step 16. Finish the setting and close IP Filter List window.

IP Filter List	k		? 🗙
An IP filter list is composed addresses and protocols ca	of multiple filters. In thi in be combined into o	is way, multiple subr ne IP filter.	nets, IP
Name:			
VPN_B WAN TO LAN			
Description:			Add
VPN_B WAN TO LAN		<u> </u>	Edit
		$\sim$	Remove
Filters:		Π υ	se Add Wizard
NS Name Source Address	Source Mask	Destination DNS	Destinatio
ic IP Add 211.22.22.22	255.255.255.255	KA specific IP Sul	Ь 192.168.1
			<u> </u>
		ОК	Cancel

Step 17. Click Filter Action tab and choose Require Security. Click Edit.

New Rule Properties	? 🛛
Authentication Methods   Tu IP Filter List	nnel Setting Connection Type Filter Action
The selected filter action for secure network traff	on specifies whether this rule negotiates ic, and how it will secure the traffic.
Filter Actions:	
Name	Description
O Permit	Permit unsecured IP packets to
O Request Security (Optional)	Accepts unsecured communicat
Require Security	Accepts unsecured communicat
Add	Permut
	Remove Vse Add Wizard
Clo	se Cancel Apply

Step 18. In Security Methods tab, choose accept unsecured communication, but always respond using IPSec.

Requ	ire Sec	urity Propert	ies		? 🗙
Sec	urity Meth	iods General			
000	Permit Block Negotial	te securitu:			
Se	curity mel	hod preference o	rder:		
Т	уре	AH Integrity	ESP Confide	ESP Ir	Add
	ustom ustom	<none> <none> <none></none></none></none>	3DES 3DES DES	MD5 SHA1 SHA1	Edit
Č	ustom	<none></none>	DES	MD5	Remove
					Move up
<				>	Move down
2 L 2	Accept ( Allow un Session	unsecured communisecured communisecured communikey perfect forwa	unication, but alwa ication with non-IF ard secrecy (PFS)	iys respond i Sec-aware	using IPSec computer
		[	95	Cancel	Apply

Require Sec	curity Prope	rties		? 🔀
Security Met C Permit C Block I Negotia	hods   General ate security:			
Security me Type Custom Custom Custom Custom	ethod preference AH Integrity <none> <none> <none> <none></none></none></none></none>	e order: ESP Confidential 3DES 3DES DES DES	ESP MD5 SHA SHA MD5	Add Edit.
<	unsecured com	munication, but alwa	> ys respond	Move up Move down using IPSec
☐ Allow u ✓ Session	nsecured comm n key perfect for	unication with non-IP ward secrecy (PFS)	Sec-aware	computer
		ОК	Cancel	Apply

Step 20. Click Custom(For professional user) and click Edit.

Modify Security Method	<b>?</b> ×
Security Method	
Encryption and Integrity Data will be encrypted and verified as authentic and unmodified	
<ul> <li>Integrity only</li> <li>Data will be verified as authentic and unmodified, but will not be encrypted</li> </ul>	
Custom	
OK Ca	ancel

Step 21. Click Data Integrity and Encapsulation and choose MD5 and 3DES. Click Generate a New key after every 28800 seconds. And click 3 times OK to return.

Custom Security Method Settings	? 🗙
Specify the settings for this custom security method.  Data and address integrity without encryption (AH) : Integrity algorithm: MD5 Encryption algorithm: Encryption algorithm:	
3DES	
Session key settings:	2
Generate a new key every: Generate a	new key every
Kbytes 28800	seconds
ОК	Cancel

Step 22. Click Connection Type tab and click all network connections.

New Rule Properties		? 🛛
IP Filter List Authentication Methods	 Tunnel Setting	Filter Action Connection Type
This rule only ap the selected typ	oplies to network traffic ie.	c over connections of
<ul> <li>All network connections</li> </ul>		
C Local area network (LAN)	]	
C Remote access		
[	Close	Cancel Apply

Step 23. Click Tunnel Setting tab, and click The tunnel endpoint is specified by the IP Address. Enter the WAN IP of Company A, 61.11.11.11.

New Rule P	Properties		4	? 🔀
Authentio	IP Filter List cation Methods	 Tunnel Sett	Filter Acti ing Con	ion   nection Type
	The tunnel endpoint is the tunneling computer closest to the IP traffic destination, as specified by the associated IP filter list. It takes two rules to describe an IPSec tunnel.			
⊂ Thisru ⊙ Thetu 61	le does not specify Innel endpoint is sp	an IPSec tunne ecified by this IP 11	l. address:	
	]	Close	Cancel	Apply

Step 24. Click Authentication Methods and click Edit.

New Rule Properties		? 🛛
IP Filter List Authentication Methods Authentication between compofered and ac computer.	Tunnel Setting Tunnel Setting methods specify how trus puters. These authentication ccepted when negotiating	Iter Action Connection Type t is established on methods are security with another
Method Kerberos	Details	Add Edit Remove Move up Move down
	Close	icel Apply
Step 25. Choose Use this string to protect the key exchange (Preshared Key). And enter the key, 123456789.

Edit Authentication Method Properties
Authentication Method
The authentication method specifies how trust is established 
C Active Directory default (Kerberos V5 protocol)
O Use a certificate from this certification authority (CA):
Browse
• Use this string (preshared key):
123456789
OK Cancel

Step 26. Finish the setting, and close the window.

New Rule Properties		? 🔀
IP Filter List Authentication Methods Authentication between com offered and a computer.	Fil Tunnel Setting n methods specify how trust puters. These authenticatio ccepted when negotiating s	ter Action Connection Type is established n methods are ecurity with another
Method Preshared Key	Details 123456789	Add Edit Remove Move up Move down
	Close	cel Apply

Step 27. Finish the Policy setting of VPN\_B WAN TO LAN.

New Rule Properties	? 🗙
Authentication Methods Tur IP Filter List	nnel Setting Connection Type   Filter Action
The selected IP filter list	specifies which network traffic will be
IP Filter Lists:	
Name	Description
O All ICMP Traffic	Matches all ICMP packets betw
O All IP Traffic	Matches all IP packets from this
O VPN B WAN TO LAN	VPN B WAN TO LAN
Add	Remove
W	
Clos	se Cancel Apply

Step 28. Enter VPN\_B window again and click Add to add second IP Security Policy. **Please** don't enable Use Add Wizard.

Site A to Site B Properties	? 🛽
Rules General	
Security rules for communicating with	n other computers
IP Security rules:	
IP Filter List Filter Action	Authentication Tu
✓ VPN_B WAN TO Require Security	Preshared Key 61
Cynamic> Default Response	Kerberos Nc
Add <u>E</u> dit <u>R</u> emove	□ Use Add <u>W</u> izard
Close	Cancel Apply

Step 29. In New Rule Properties, click Add.

New Rule Properties	? 🛛
Authentication Methods Tur IP Filter List	nel Setting Connection Type   Filter Action
The selected IP filter list	specifies which network traffic will be
IP Filter Lists:	
Name	Description
O AILICMP Traffic	Matches all ICMP packets betw
O AILIP Traffic	Matches all IP packets from this
O VPN_B WAN TO LAN	VPN_B WAN TO LAN
Add Edit	Remove
04	Cancel Apply

Step 30. In IP Filter List window, **please disable Use Add Wizard**, and change Name to VPN\_B LAN TO WAN. Click Add.

🔜 IP Filt	er List			? 🗙
tutut.	An IP filter list is compos addresses and protocol	sed of multiple filters. In l s can be combined into	this way, multiple subr one IP filter.	nets, IP
Name:				
VPN_B	LAN TO WAN			,
Descript	ion:			Add
VPN_B	LAN TO WAN			Edit
			<b>v</b>	Remove
Filters:			🗖 U:	se Add Wizard
Mirrore	d Description	Protocol	Source Port	Destination
8				
			0K	Cancel

Step 31. In Filter Properties window,

in Source address, click down the arrow to select the specific IP Subnet and fill Company A's IP Address, 192.168.10.0 and Subnet mask 255.255.255.0.

In Destination address click down the arrow to select the specific IP Subnet and fill Company B's IP Address, 211.22.22.22 and Subnet mask, 255.255.255.255., Please disable Mirrored. Also match packets with the exact opposite source and destination addresses.

Filter Properties	×
Addressing Protocol Description	
Source address:	
A specific IP Subnet	
IP Address: 192 . 168 . 10 . 0	
Subnet mask: 255 . 255 . 255 . 0	
Destination address:	
IP address: 211 . 22 . 22 . 22	
Subnet mask: 255 . 255 . 255 . 255	
Mirrored. Also match packets with the exact opposite source and destination addresses.	
OK Cancel	

Step 32. Finish the setting and close IP Filter List window.

IP Filter List			? 🛛
An IP filt	er list is composed of multipl s and protocols can be cor	le filters. In this way, mult nbined into one IP filter.	tiple subnets, IP
Name:			
VPN_B LAN TO V	/AN		_
Description:			Add
VPN_B LAN TO V	/AN		Edit
			Remove
Filters:			🔲 Use Add Wizard
Source Address	Source Mask	Destination DNS	Destination Address
192.168.10.0	255.255.255.0	<a add<="" ip="" specific="" td=""><td>211.22.22.22</td></a>	211.22.22.22
<			
		OK	Cancel

Step 33. Click Filter Action tab and choose Require Security. Click Edit.

New Rule Properties	? 🗙
Authentication Methods Tu IP Filter List	nnel Setting Connection Type Filter Action
The selected filter action for secure network traff	on specifies whether this rule negotiates ic, and how it will secure the traffic.
Filter Actions:	
Name	Description
O Permit	Permit unsecured IP packets to
O Request Security (Optional)	Accepts unsecured communicat
	Accepts unsecured communicat
Add Edit	Remove 🔽 Use Add Wizard
Clo	se Cancel Apply

Step 34. In Security Methods tab, choose accept unsecured communication, but always respond using IPSec.

Re	quire Sec	urity Proper	ties		? 🗙
S	ecurity Metl	hods General			1
	C Permit C Block C Negotia	ite security:			
	Security me	thod preference	order:		
	Туре	AH Integrity	ESP Confidential	ES	Add
	Custom	<none></none>	3DES 3DES	SH	Edit
	Custom	<none></none>	DES	SH	
	Custom	<none></none>	DES	ME	Remove
					Move up
	<			>	Move down
	<ul> <li>Accept</li> <li>Allow un</li> <li>Session</li> </ul>	unsecured comm nsecured commu n key perfect forw	nunication, but always nication with non-IPS ard secrecy (PFS)	: respond ( ec-aware	using IPSec computer
_			ОК	Cancel	Apply

Require Se	curity Proper	ties		? 🔀
Security Me O Permit O Block O Negoti Security m	thods   General   ate security: ethod preference	order:		
Type Custom Custom Custom Custom	AH Integrity	ESP Confidential 3DES 3DES DES DES DES	ES ME SH SH ME	Add Edit Remove
✓ Accep	t unsecured communisecured commu	nunication, but always nication with non-IPSe	respond of c-aware	Move up Move down using IPSec computer
▼ Sessio	n key perfect forw	vard secrecy (PFS)		
		ОК	Cancel	Apply

Step 36. Click Custom(For professional user) and click Edit.

Modify Security Method	?×
Security Method	
Encryption and Integrity Data will be encrypted and verified as authentic and unmodified	
Integrity only Data will be verified as authentic and unmodified, but will not be	
encrypted © Custom	
Settings	
OK Car	ncel

Step 37. Click Data Integrity and Encapsulation and choose MD5 and 3DES. Click Generate a New key after every 28800 seconds. And click 3 times OK to return.

<b>Custom Security Method Setting</b>	s ? 🔀
<ul> <li>Specify the settings for this custom security and address integrity without end integrity algorithm:</li> <li>MD5</li> <li>Data integrity and encryption (ESP): Integrity algorithm:</li> <li>MD5</li> </ul>	rity method. ncryption (AH) :
Encryption algorithm: 3DES Session key settings:	
Generate a new key every: 100000 Kbytes	Generate a new key every 28800 seconds
	OK Cancel

Step 38. Click Connection Type tab and click all network connections.

New Rule Properties		? 🔀
IP Filter List Authentication Methods	 Tunnel Setting	Filter Action Connection Type
This rule only ap This rule only ap the selected typ	oplies to network traffic ie.	c over connections of
<ul> <li>All network connections</li> </ul>		
C Local area network (LAN)	]	
C Remote access		
[	Close	Cancel Apply

Step 39. Click Tunnel Setting tab, and click The tunnel endpoint is specified by the IP Address. Enter the WAN IP of Company B, 211.22.22.22.

New Rule Properties	k	? 🛛
IP Filter List Authentication Methods	 Tunnel Setting	Filter Action
The tunnel end IP traffic destin- list. It takes two	point is the tunneling c ation, as specified by th rules to describe an IF	omputer closest to the ne associated IP filter PSec tunnel.
<ul> <li>This rule does not specify</li> <li>The tunnel endpoint is sp 211.22.22</li> </ul>	y an IPSec tunnel. becified by this IP addre	955:
,		
	Close	ancel Apply

Step 40. Click Authentication Methods and click Edit.

New Rule Properties		? 🔀
IP Filter List Authentication Methods Authentication between com offered and a computer.	Fill Tunnel Setting n methods specify how trust puters. These authenticatio ccepted when negotiating s	ter Action Connection Type is established n methods are ecurity with another
Method Kerberos	Details	Add E dit Remove Move up Move down
	<b>Close</b> Cano	cel Apply

Step 41. Choose Use this string to protect the key exchange (Preshared Key). And enter the key, 123456789.

Edit Authentication Method Properties
Authentication Method
The authentication method specifies how trust is established BBB between the computers.
C Active Directory default (Kerberos V5 protocol)
C Use a certificate from this certification authority (CA):
Browse
<ul> <li>Use this string (preshared key):</li> </ul>
123456789
OK Cancel

Step 42. Finish the setting, and close the window.

New Rule Properties		? 🛛
IP Filter List Authentication Methods Authenticat between co offered and computer.	Fil Tunnel Setting ion methods specify how trust imputers. These authenticatio accepted when negotiating s	ter Action Connection Type is established n methods are security with another
Authentication method pr	eference order:	
Method	Details	Add
Preshared Key	123456789	
		Remove Move up Move down
	Close	cel Apply

Step 43. Finish the Policy setting of VPN\_B LAN TO WAN.

Site A to Site B Propert	ies		? 🛛
Rules General			
Security rules I	ior communicating w	ith other computers	
IP Security rules:			
IP Filter List	Filter Action	Authentication	Tunnel
VPN_B WAN TO	Require Security	Preshared Key	61.11.1
VPN_B LAN TO	Require Security	Preshared Key	211.22.
Clynamic>	Default Response	Kerberos	None
<			>
Add <u>E</u> di	t <u>R</u> emov	/e 🗌 🗖 Use Ad	ld <u>W</u> izard
	Close	Cancel	Apply

Step 44. In VPN\_B window, click General tab. And click Advanced for Key Exchange using these settings.

Site A to Site B Properties
Rules General
IP Security policy general properties
Name:
VPN B
Description:
IPSec Tunnel Side A to Side B
Check for policy changes every: 180 minute(s)
Perform key exchange using these settings: Advanced
Close Cancel Apply

Step 45. Click Master key Perfect Forward Secrecy.

Key Exchange	Settings ? 🗙
🔽 Master key p	erfect forward secrecy (PFS)
Authenticate and	d generate a new key after every:
480	minutes
Authenticate and	d generate a new key after every:
1	session(s)
Protect identities	with these security methods:
Methods	<u>}</u>
Internet Key Exc Jointly develope	。 hange (IKE) for Windows XP d by Microsoft and Cisco Systems, Inc.
	OK Cancel

Step 46. Move IKE/ 3DES/ MD5/ up to the highest order. Finish all settings.

Key Excha	inge Security	Methods		? 🗙
	Protect identitie methods.	s during autł	nentication with t	hese security
Security me	ethod preference o	order:		
Туре	Encryption	Integrity	Diffie-Hellm	Add
IKE	3DES	MD5	Medium (2)	
IKE	3DES	SHA1	Medium (2)	Edit
IKE	DES	SHA1	Low (1)	
IKE	DES	MUS	LOW [1]	Hemove
				Move up
<				Move down
			OK	Cancel

Step 47. Finish the settings of Company B's Windows 2000 VPN.

🚡 Console1 - [Console Root\IP Secu	rity Policies on Local Computer		
📸 File Action View Favorites Win	dow Help		_ & ×
	<u>.</u>		
Console Root	Name /	Description	Policy Assigned
IP Security Policies on Local Compute	Client (Respond Only)	Communicate normally (unsecured). Use the default response rule to negotiate with serv	No
	Secure Server (Require Security)	For all IP traffic, always require security using Kerberos trust. Do NOT allow unsecured c	No
	Server (Request Security)	For all IP traffic, always request security using Kerberos trust. Allow unsecured communi	No
	VPN B	IPSec Tunnel Side A to Side B	No
<	<		) (>

Step 48. Click the right button of mouse in VPN\_B and enable Assign.



## Step 49. To restart IPSec by Start→Settings→Control Panel



Step 50. Enter Control Panel and click Administrative Tools.



Step 51. After entering Administrative Tools, click Services.



Step 52. After entering Service, click IPSec Services, Restart the Service.

Services (Local) IPSEC Services Stop the service Restart the service Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	Name / Application Layer G Application Layer G Application Manage ASP.NET State Serv Automatic Updates Background Intellig Com+ Event System COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Computer Browser Computer Browser Computer Browser	Description Notifies sel Provides s Provides s Provides s Enables th Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Manages t Provides th	Status Started Started Started Started Started	Startup Type Disabled Manual Manual Automatic Manual Manual Manual Automatic Manual	Log On As Local Service Local System Network S Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	<b>∧</b>
IPSEC Services <u>Stop</u> the service <u>Restart</u> the service Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oskley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	Name / Application Layer G Application Manage ASP.NET State Serv Asternatic Updates Background Intellig COM+ Event System COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Computer Browser Computer Browser Computer Browser	Description Notifies sel Provides s Provides s Enables sth Transfers Enables cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th Provides th	Status Started Started Started Started Started	Startup Type Disabled Manual Manual Automatic Manual Disabled Manual Manual Automatic Automatic	Log On As Local Service Local System Network S Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	<b>∼</b>
Stop the service Restart the service Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	<ul> <li>Alerter</li> <li>Application Layer G.,</li> <li>Application Manage</li> <li>ASP.NET State Serv</li> <li>Automatic Updates</li> <li>Background Intellig</li> <li>CIBbook</li> <li>COM+ Event System</li> <li>COM+ System Appli</li> <li>Computer Browser</li> <li>Computer Browser</li> <li>Computer Browser</li> <li>Computer Browser</li> </ul>	Notifies sel Provides s Provides s Enables th Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th Descided	Started Started Started Started Started	Disabled Manual Manual Automatic Manual Disabled Manual Manual Automatic	Local Service Local Service Local System Network S Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	
Stop the service Restart the service Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	Application Layer G Application Manage ASP.NET State Serv Automatic Updates Background Intellig CoM+ Event System COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Computer Browser	Provides s Provides s Provides s Enables th Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Provides th Provides th	Started Started Started Started Started	Manual Manual Automatic Manual Disabled Manual Automatic Automatic	Local Service Local System Network S Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	
Restart the service Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	Application Manage As ASP.NET State Serv Automatic Updates Background Intellig Clipbook COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Computer Browser	Provides s Provides s Enables th Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th Describer b.	Started Started Started Started	Manual Manual Automatic Manual Disabled Manual Manual Automatic	Local System Network S Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	
Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	ASP.NET State Serv Automatic Updates Background Intellig ClipBook COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Computer Browser	Provides s Enables th Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th Denvides th	Started Started Started Started	Manual Automatic Manual Disabled Manual Automatic Automatic	Network S Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	
Description: Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	Automatic Updates Background Intellig ClipBook COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Cryptographic Servi	Enables th Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th Denvides th	Started Started Started Started	Automatic Manual Disabled Manual Manual Automatic Automatic	Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	
Manages IP security policy and starts the ISAKMP/Oakley (IKE) and the IP security driver.	Background Intellig ClipBook COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Corptographic Servi	Transfers Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th	Started Started Started	Manual Disabled Manual Manual Automatic	Local System Local System Local System Local System Local System	
driver.	ClipBook COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Cryptographic Servi	Enables Cli Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th	Started Started Started	Disabled Manual Manual Automatic	Local System Local System Local System Local System	
	COM+ Event System COM+ System Appli Computer Browser Cryptographic Servi	Supports S Manages t Maintains a Provides th	Started Started Started	Manual Manual Automatic	Local System Local System Local System	
	COM+ System Appli Computer Browser	Manages t Maintains a Provides th	Started Started	Manual Automatic Automatic	Local System Local System	
	Computer Browser	Maintains a Provides th	Started Started	Automatic Automatic	Local System	
	Cryptographic Servi	Provides th	Started	Automatic	Land Cushers	
	Be DCOM Server Proce	Dura dala a la		Macomatic	Local System	
	DCON DEIVER FLOCE	Provides la	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	DHCP Client	Manages n	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	Distributed Link Tra	Maintains li	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	Distributed Transac	Coordinate		Manual	Network S	
	DNS Client	Resolves a	Started	Automatic	Network S	
	Error Reporting Ser	Allows erro	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	Event Log	Enables ev	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	Rest User Switching	Provides m	Started	Manual	Local System	
	Help and Support	Enables He	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	HTTP SSL	This servic		Manual	Local System	
	Human Interface D	Enables ge		Disabled	Local System	
	MAPI CD-Burning C	Manages C		Manual	Local System	
	Walndexing Service	Indexes co		Manual	Local System	
	Relipsec Services		Started	Automatic	Local System	
	Sta	art 🚺	Started	Automatic	Local System	
	Logical Disk Mar	P I	10000000	Manual	Local System	
	Resenger Par	lse		Disabled	Local System	
	Re Re	sume		Manual	Local System	
	Re:	start		Manual	Local System	
	Ren Net Meeting Rer All	Tasks		Manual	Local System	
	Wa Network Conne		Started	Manual	Local System	
	Rel Rel	fresh	5101000	Disabled	Local System	~
Extended / Standard /	Dre	opertier		01040104	Edd Stotem	
SEC Services on Local Computer						
	Extended / Standard / SEC Services on Local Computer	Distributed Link Tra     Distributed Link Tra     Distributed Link Tra     Distributed Transac     Distributed	Distributed link Tra Maintains lin. Distributed link Tra Coordinate Distributed Transac Coordinate Distributed Transac Distributed Transac D	Started       Started         Distributed Link Tra       Maintains II         Started       Distributed Transac       Coordinate         Started       Error Reporting Ser       Allows error         Started       Fast User Switching       Provides m         Started       Fast User Switching       Provides m         Human Interface D       Enables ev       Started         Human Interface D       Enables ev       Started         MAPI CD-Burning C       Manages C       Indexing Service:       Indexes co         IMAPI CD-Burning C       Manages C       Started       Started         Storical Disk Mar       Started       Started       Started         Messenger       Massenger       Started       Started         Met Logon       Net Logon       All Tasks       Started         Network Conne       Refresh       Started       Started         Started       Started       Properties       Help         Extended (Standard /       Started       Started       Started         Started       Properties       Help       Help         Piperties       Help       Matintstrabive Too	Distributed Link Tra     Minitains II     Started Automatic     Distributed Transac     Coordinate     Manual     Distributed Transac     Coordinate     Started Automatic     Event Log     Enables ev     Started Automatic     Fast User Switching     Provides m     Started Automatic     Help and Support     Enables He     Started Automatic     Manual     Help and Support     Enables He     Started Automatic     Manual     Markains II     Started Automatic     Manual     Marual     Manual     Marual     Manual     Started     Manual     Started     Manual     Started     Manual     Manual     Started     Manual     Started     Manual     Manual     Started     Manual     Manual     Manual     Manual     Manual     Manual     Started     Manual     Started     Manual	Distributed Link Tra       Maintains Link Tra

## Step 53. Finish all settings.

🗟 Console1 - [Console Root\IP Security Policies on Local Computer]				
📸 File Action View Favorites Window	v Help		_ & ×	
Console Root Na	ame /	Description	Policy Assigned	
P Security Policies on Local Compute	] Client (Respond Only) ] Secure Server (Require Security) ] Server (Request Security) ] VPN B	Communicate normally (unsecured). Use the default response rule to negotiate with serv For all IP traffic, always require security using Kerberos trust. Do NOT allow unsecured c For all IP traffic, always request security using Kerberos trust. Allow unsecured communi IPSec Tunnel Side A to Side B	No No Yes	
	JVPN B	IPSec Tunnel Side A to Side B	Yes	
< > > <			) (>	

**Example 3.** Create a VPN connection between two Multi-Homing Gateway using Aggressive mode Algorithm (3 DES and MD5), and data encryption for IPSec Algorithm (3DES and MD5)

Preparation Task: Company A External IP is 61.11.11.11 Internal IP is 192.168.10.X Company B External IP is 211.22.22.22 Internal IP is 192.168.20.X

To suppose Company A, 192.168.10.100 create a VPN connection with company B, 192.168.20.100 for downloading the sharing file by Aggressive mode Algorithm.

The Gateway of Company A is 192.168.10.1. The settings of company A are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company A's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.10.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.

G · O · 🖻 🗟 🟠 🔎	👷 🥹 🗟 · 🗟 🔀 · 🚳			🥂 – 8 ×
Multi-homing Router		IPSec Auto	okey	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name Gateway IP	Destination Subnet	Algorithm Status	Configure

Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_A in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.10.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Keyed Tunnel				
Name			VPN_A	
From Source	<ul> <li>LAN</li> </ul>	O DMZ		
Use interface	WAN1	O WAN2		
Subnet / M	ask		192.168.10.0 / 255.255.255.0	

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company B's subnet IP and mask.

To Destination	977.	
Remote Gateway Fixed IP	211.22.22.22	
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0	1 255.255.255.0
○ Remote Gateway Dynamic IP		
Subnet / Mask		/ 255.255.255.0
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynam	ic IP	

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💌
Preshared Key	123456789

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose Aggressive mode Algorithm. For communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group 2 to connect.

Enter Local ID/ Remote ID optionally. If we choose to enter Local ID/ Remote ID, they couldn't be equal. For instance, Local ID is 11.11.11.11 and Remote ID is 22.22.22.22. Add @ before number or text, for instance, @123A and @Abcd1.

✓ Aggressive mode			
My ID @bc123			
Peer ID	11.11.11.11		

Step 6. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
O Data Encryption + Authentica	tion
ENC Algorithm	DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 🗸
O Authentication Only	

Step 7. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy	
IPSec Lifetime	28800 Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.20.100

Step 8. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Schedule

None

×

Step 9. Click OK to finish the setting of Company A.

IPSec Autokey				
Name         Gateway IP         Destination Subnet         Algorithm         Status         Configure           VPN_A 211.22.22.22         192.168.20.0         None         Disconnect         Connecting         Medify         Remove				
New Entry				

The Gateway of Company B is 192.168.20.1. The settings of company B are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company B's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.20.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.



Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_B in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.20.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Keyed Tunnel				
Name	VPN_B			
From Source 💿 LAN 🔿 DMZ				
Use interface 💿 WAN1 🔿 WAN2				
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0 / 255.255.255.0			

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company A's subnet IP and mask, 192.168.10.0 and 255.255.255.0 respectively.

Remote Gateway Fixed IP	61.11.11.11	
Subnet / Mask	192.168.10.0	1 255.255.255.0
O Remote Gateway Dynamic IP		
Subnet / Mask		1 255.255.255.0
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynami	ic IP	

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💌
Preshared Key	123456789

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose ISAKMP Algorithm. For

communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group 2 to connect.

Enter Local ID/ Remote ID optionally. If we choose to enter Local ID/ Remote ID, they couldn't be equal. For instance, Local ID is 11.11.11.11 and Remote ID is 22.22.22.22. Add @ before number or text, for instance, @123A and @Abcd1.

Aggressive mode		
My ID	11.11.11	
Peer ID	@bc123	

Step 6. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
O Data Encryption + Authentication	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
O Authentication Only	

Step 7. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy	
IPSec Lifetime	28800 Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.10.100

Step 8. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Schedule None ¥

Step 9. Click OK to finish the setting of Company B.

IPSec Autokey						
Name VPN_B	Gateway IP 61.11.11.11	Destination Subnet 192.168.10.0	Algorithm None	Status Disconnect	Configure Connecting Modify Remove	
New Entry						
**Example 4.** Create a VPN connection between two Multi-Homing Gateway using ISAKMP Algorithm (3DES and MD5), data encryption for IPSec Algorithm (3DES and MD5) and GRE.

Preparation Task: Company A External IP is 61.11.11.11 Internal IP is 192.168.10.X Company B External IP is 211.22.22.22 Internal IP is 192.168.20.X

To suppose Company A, 192.168.10.100 create a VPN connection with company B, 192.168.20.100 for downloading the sharing file by GRE/ IPSec Algorithm.

The Gateway of Company A is 192.168.10.1. The settings of company A are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company A's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.10.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.

🔇 • 🕤 · 🖻 🗟 🏠 🔎 •	📩 🚱 🔗 - 🍣 🖻 - 🎕			🦉 – ē ×
Multi-homing Router		IPSec Auto	okey	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name Gateway IP	Destination Subnet	Algorithm Status	Configure
ST DOUD				- Anconnoc

Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_A in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.10.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Keyed Tunnel					
Name			VPN_A		
From Source	O LAN	O DMZ			
Use interface	WAN1	O WAN2			
Subnet / M	ask		192.168.10.0 / 255.255.255.0		

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company B's subnet IP and mask.

To Destination	1	de la de	
⊙ Remote Gateway Fixed IP	211.22.22.22		
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0	1 255.255.255.0	
○ Remote Gateway Dynamic IP			
Subnet / Mask		1 255.255.255.0	
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynamic	IP		

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💙
Preshared Key	123456789

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose ISAKMP Algorithm. For communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group to connect.

Encapsulation	
ISAKMP Algorithm	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 🗸
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 V
Group	GROUP 1 🗸

Step 6. Choose GRE/ IPSec and enter GRE Source IP, 192.168.50.100 and GRE Remote IP, 192.168.50.200.

Note. The Source IP and Remote IP should be in the same C Class and modified by Administrator.

GRE/IPSec		
GRE Local IP	192.168.50.200	
GRE Remote IP	192.168.50.100	

Step 7. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
<ul> <li>Data Encryption + Authentication</li> </ul>	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
O Authentication Only	

Step 8. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy	
IPSec Lifetime	28800 Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.20.100

Step 9. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Schedule	None
----------	------

Step 10. Click OK to finish the setting of Company A.

IPSec Autokey				
Name         Gateway IP         Destination Subnet         Algorithm         Status         Configure           VPN_A 211.22.22.22         192.168.20.0         None         Disconnect         Connecting         Modify         Remove				
New Entry				

The Gateway of Company B is 192.168.20.1. The settings of company B are as the following.

Step 1. Enter the default IP of Company B's Multi-Homing Gateway, 192.168.20.1. Click VPN in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-select IPSec Autokey. Click Add.

G · 🕑 · 🖹 🗟 🏠	🔎 📩 🕲 🙆 - 🚳 🗔 - 🚳			🥂 – ð ×
Multi-hom Router	ing	IPSec Aut	okey	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Name Gateway IP	Destination Subnet	Algorithm Stat	us Configure
El Done				🌍 Internet

Step 2. Enter the VPN name, VPN\_B in IPSec Autokey window, and choose From Source to be Internal. Fill the subnet IP, 192.168.20.0 and subnet mask, 255.255.255.0.

VPN Auto Keyed Tunnel					
Name	VPN_B				
From Source 💿 LAN 🔿 DMZ					
Use interface 💿 WAN1 🔿 WAN2					
Subnet / Mask	192.168.20.0 / 255.255.255.0				

Step 3. In To Destination table, choose Remote Gateway-Fixed IP, enter the IP desired to be connected, company A's subnet IP and mask, 192.168.10.0 and 255.255.255.0 respectively.

Remote Gateway Fixed IP	61.11.11.11			
Subnet / Mask	192.168.10.0 / 255.255.255.0			
O Remote Gateway Dynamic IP				
Subnet / Mask		1 255.255.255.0		
O Remote Client Fixed IP or Dynami	ic IP			

Step 4. In Authentication Method Table, choose Preshare and enter the Preshared Key. (The max length is 100 bits.)

Authentication Method	Preshare 💌
Preshared Key	123456789

Step 5. In Encapsulation or Authentication table, choose ISAKMP Algorithm. For communication via VPN, we choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm. And select Group 1 to connect.

Encapsulation	
ISAKMP Algorithm	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
Group	GROUP1

Step 6. Choose GRE/ IPSec and enter GRE Source IP, 192.168.50.200 and GRE Remote IP, 192.168.50.100.

Note. The Source IP and Remote IP should be in the same C Class and modified by Administrator.

GRE/IPSec		
GRE Local IP	192.168.50.200	
GRE Remote IP	192.168.50.100	

Step 6. In IPSec Algorithm Table , choose Data Encryption + Authentication. We choose 3DES for ENC Algorithm and MD5 for AUTH Algorithm.

IPSec Algorithm	
<ul> <li>Data Encryption + Authentication</li> </ul>	
ENC Algorithm	3DES 💌
AUTH Algorithm	MD5 💌
O Authentication Only	

Step 7. Choose Perfect Forward Secrecy, and enter 28800 seconds in IPSec Lifetime and Keep alive IP to keep connecting.

Perfect Forward Secrecy	
IPSec Lifetime	28800 Seconds
Keep alive IP :	192.168.10.100

Step 8. Click the down arrow to select the policy of schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

nedule
--------

Step 9. Click OK to finish the setting of Company B.

			IPS	ec Au	tokey		
Name VPN_B	Gateway IP 61.11.11.11	Destination 192.168.	Subnet 10.0	Algorithm None	Status Disconnect	Configure Connecting Modify Rem	ove
				New Entry	È		



#### **Entering the PPTP Server window**

**Step 1.** Select VPN → PPTP Server.

3 · 0 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	े 📩 😧 🔗 💺 🖪	<b>∂</b> • <b>3</b> 8				🥂 – 8 ×
Multi-homin Router	9		PPTP	Server		-
System Interface Address	PPTP Server ( End Client IP Range : 1	92.26.145.1-254	(Modify) :			
Service Schedule	User Name test	Client IP 0.0.0.0	Uptime 	Status Disconnect	Configure Modify Remove	
Virtual Server			New E	intry		
IPSec Autokey PPTP Server						
PPTP Client						
Log						
Statistics Status						
Done					🔮 Internel	

- **PPTP Server** : Click **Modify** to select Enable or Disable.
- Client IP Range: 192.26.145.1-254: Display the IP addresses range for PPTP Client connection.
- User Name : Displays the PPTP Client user's name for authentication.
- Client IP : Displays the PPTP Client's IP address for authentication. •
- **Uptime** : Displays the connection time between PPTP Server and Client.
- Status : Displays current connection status between PPTP Server and PPTP client.

 Configure : Click [Modify] to modify the PPTP Client settings or click [Remove] to remove the item.

#### **Modifying PPTP Server Design**

- **Step 1.** Select VPN → PPTP Server.
- **Step 2.** Click [Modify] after the Client IP Range.

**Step 3.** In the [Modify Server Design ] Window, enter appropriate settings.

G · 🕞 · 🖹 🗟 🏠	🔎 🧙 🥹 🗟 · 🖓		🥂 – ð ×
Multi-hom Router	ing PP	TP Server	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Modify Server Design ○ Disable PPTP ② Encryption Client IP Range : Auto-Disconnect if idle 0 minutes Schedule	192.26.145.1 254 (0: means always connected) Schedule_1 V OK Can	
Cone Cone		🥩 Interr	net

- **Disable PPTP** : Check to disable PPTP Server.
- Enable PPTP : Check to enable PPTPServer.
  - 1. Encyption: the default is set to disabled.
  - 2.Client IP Range : Enter the IP range allocated for PPTP Client to connect to

the PPTP server.

- Auto-Disconnect if idle 
   minutes: Configure this device to disconnect to the PPTP Server when there is no activity for a predetermined period of time. To keep the line always connected, set the number to 0.
- Schedule : Click the down arrow to select the schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

**Step 4.** Click **OK** to save modifications or click **Cancel** to cancel modifications **Adding PPTP Server** 

**Step 1.** Select VPN → PPTP Server. Click NewEntry.

**Step 2.** Enter appropriate settings in the following window.

- User name: Specify the PPTP client. This should be unique.
- Password: Specify the PPTP client password.
- Remote Client :

□ Single Machine: Check to connect to single computer.

□ Multi-Machine: Check to allow multiple computers connected to the PPTP server.

IP Address: Enter the PPTP Client IP address.

Netmask: Enter the PPTP Client Sub net mask.

- Client IP assigned by :
  - 1. IP Range: check to enable auto-allocating IP for PPTP client to connect.
  - 2. Fixed IP: check and enter a fixed IP for PPTP client to connect.



Step 3. Click OK to save modifications or click Cancel to cancel modifications

#### **Modifying PPTP Server**

- **Step 1.** Select VPN → PPTP Server.
- **Step 2.** In the [PPTP Server] window, find the PPTP server that you want to modify. Click [Configure] and click [Modify].
- Step 3. Enter appropriate settings.



Step 4. Click OK to save modifications or click Cancel to cancel modifications

#### **Removing PPTP Server**

- **Step 1.** Select VPN → PPTP Server.
- **Step 2.** In the **[PPTP Server ]** window, find the PPTP server that you want to modify. Click **[Configure]** and click **[remove]**.
- **Step 3.** Click **OK** to remove the PPTP server or click **Cancel** to exit without removal.

3 · 0 - 🖻 🗟 🏠	🔎 📩 🕲 🙆 - 😓 🛙	<b>-</b>				n – म ×
Multi-homi Router	ng		PPTP	Server		
System Interface Address	PPTP Server( Client IP Range:1	92.26.145.1-254	(ON): 1 Modify			
Service Schedule Content Filtering	User Name test	Client IP 0.0.0.0	Uptime 	Status Disconnect	Configure Modify Remove	
VPN IPSec Autokey			New E	ntry		
PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy		Microsoft Internet	t Explorer			
Log Alarm Statistics		OK	Cancel	re /		
Status						
) http://192.168.1.1/cgi-bin/pptp.cgi?ty	pe=PPTP#=0&id=Server&pptp_typ	e=5&ui=Server&modif	y=Delete		🔮 Interne	st



#### **Entering the PPTP Client window**

#### **Step 1.** Select VPN→PPTP Client.

3 · 0 · 🖹 🗟 🚮	P 👷 🐵 🗟 - 🖏 🔤 - 🖏
Multi-homit Router	PPTP Client
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	PPTP Client : User Name   Server Address Encryption   Uptime   Status   Configure test 61.11.11.11 OFF Disconnect   Connecting   Modify   Remove New Entry
🕘 Done	🍘 Internet

- Server Address : Display the PPTP Server IP addresses..
- User Name : Displays the PPTP Client user's name for authentication.
- Server IP : Displays the PPTP Server's IP address for authentication. •
- Encryption : Displays the PPTP Client Encryption ON or OFF
- **Uptime** : Displays the connection time between PPTP Server and Client.
- Status : Displays current connection status between PPTP Server and PPTP client.
- Configure : Click [Modify] to modify the PPTP Client settings or click [Remove] to remove the item.

## Adding a PPTP Client

#### **Step 1.** Select VPN → PPTP Client.

- User name: Specify the PPTP client. This should be unique.
- Password: Specify the PPTP client password.
- Server Address: Enter the PPTP Server's IP address.
- Encyption : Enable or Disabled the Encyption .
- Remote Client :

Single Machine: Check to connect to single computer.

Multi-Machine: Check to allow multiple computers connected to the PPTP server.

**IP Address** : Enter the PPTP Client IP address.

Netmask: Enter the PPTP Client Sub net mask.

G · 🕤 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 ,	₽ 👷 🕹 🗟 • 🍇 🔕	- All Marries		🥂 – # ×
Multi-homin Router	ng	PPTP CI	lient	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New PPTP Client         User Name :         Password :         Server Address :         Remote Server         ○ Single Machine         ○ Multi-Machine         IP Address :         Netmask :         □ always-connect         ☑ Auto-Connect when sendim         Auto-Disconnect if idle 0         Schedule         □NAT (Connect to Windows F	test •••• 61.11.11.11 192.168.10.0 255.255.255.0 Ig packet through the minutes (0: means Schedule_1 ♥ PPTP Server)	Encryption Ink always connected)	
Done				🍘 Internet

- Auto-Connect when sending packet through the link: Check to enable the auto-connection whenever there's packet to transmit over the connection.
- Auto-Disconnect if idle minutes: Configure this device to disconnect to the PPTP Server when there is no activity for a predetermined period of time. To keep the line always connected, set the number to 0.
- Schedule : Click the down arrow to select the schedule, which was pre-determined in Schedule. Refer to the corresponding section for details.

Step 4. Click OK to save modifications or click Cancel to cancel modifications.

#### **Modifying PPTP Client**

- **Step 1.** Select VPN→PPTP Client.
- **Step 2.** In the [PPTP Client] window, find the PPTP server that you want to modify. Click [Configure] and click [Modify].
- **Step 3.** Enter appropriate settings.

3 · 0 · 🖹 🗟 🟠	🔎 📩 🥹 😂 · 🍇 😥 · 🍇		🥂 – & ×
Multi-homi Router	ing	PPTP Client	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Modify PPTP Client User Name : Password : Server Address : Remote Server ○ Single Machine IP Address : Netmask : □ always-connect ✓ Auto-Connect when sendir Auto-Disconnect if idle 0 Schedule □ NAT (Connect to Windows	test 61.11.11.11 ✓ Encryption 192.168.10.0 255.255.255.0 ng packet through the link minutes (0: means always connected) Schedule_1 ✓ PPTP Server) 0K	Cancel
٤Ì			🥝 Internet

Step 4. Click OK to save modifications or click Cancel to cancel modifications

#### **Removing PPTP Client**

- **Step 1.** Select VPN→PPTP Client.
- **Step 2.** In the **[PPTP Client]** window, find the PPTP client that you want to modify. Click **[Configure]** and click **[remove]**.
- **Step 3.** Click **OK** to remove the PPTP client or click **Cancel** to exit without removal.

G · 🕞 · 🖹 🗟 🏠		🥂 – 8 ×
Multi-homi Router	Ing PPTP Client	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN IPSec Autokey PPTP Server PPTP Client Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	PPTP Client : User Name Server Address Encryption Uptime Status Configure test 61.11.11.11 ON Disconnect Connecting Modify Remo New Entry Microsoft Internet Explorer Are you sure you want to remove ? CK Cancel	
Contemp://192.168.1.1/cgi-bin/pptp.cgi?t	ype=PPTP#=0&id=Client&pptp_type=6&ui=Client&modify=Delete&chainname=1105959547 🦉 Intern	/et

# Policy

This section provides the Administrator with facilities to sent control policies for packets with different source IP addresses, source ports, destination IP addresses, and destination ports. Control policies decide whether packets from different network objects, network services, and applications are able to pass through the Multi-Homing Gateway.

#### What is Policy?

The device uses policies to filter packets. The policy settings are: source address, destination address, services, permission, packet log, packet statistics, and flow alarm. Based on its source addresses, a packet can be categorized into:

(1). Outgoing: a client is in the LAN networks while a server is in the WAN 1/2 networks.

(2) Incoming, a client is in the WAN 1/2 networks, while a server is in the LAN networks.

(3) To DMZ: a client is either in the internal networks or in the WAN networks while, server is in DMZ.

(4) From DMZ, a client is in DMZ while server is either in the internal networks or in the WAN networks.

#### How do I use Policy?

The policy settings are source addresses, destination addresses, services, permission, log, statistics, and flow alarm. Among them, source addresses, destination addresses and IP mapping addresses have to be defined in the **Address** menu in advance. Services can be used directly in setting up policies, if they are in the Pre-defined Service menu. Custom services need to be defined in the **Custom** menu before they can be used in the policy settings.

If the destination address of an incoming policy is a Mapped IP address or a Virtual Server address, then the address has to be defined in the **Virtual Server** section instead of the **Address** section.



# Outgoing

This section describes steps to create policies for packets and services from the LAN network to the WAN 1/2 network.

#### Entering the Outgoing window:

Click **Policy** on the left hand side menu bar, then click **Outgoing** under it. A window will appear with a table displaying currently defined Outgoing policies.

G · O · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎	📩 🚱 🗟 · 🍓 🖻 · 🍇	🥂 – ē ×
Router	Outgoing	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Outgoing Incoming WAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ DMZ To WAN DMZ To LAN DMZ To LAN DMZ To LAN Statistics Status	Source       Destination       Service       Action       Option         Inside_Any       Outside_Any       ANY       Image: Construction of the second of the sec	Configure Move Medify Remove To 1 💌
Cone Cone		🧭 Internet

The fields in the Outgoing window are:

- Source: source network addresses that are specified in the LAN section of Address menu, or all the LAN network addresses.
- Destination: destination network addresses that are specified in the WAN section of the Address menu, or all of the WAN network addresses.
- **Service:** specify services provided by WAN network servers.

- Action: control actions to permit or deny packets from LAN networks to WAN 1/2 network travelling through the Multi-Homing Gateway.
- Option: specify the monitoring functions on packets from LAN networks to WAN 1/2 networks travelling through the Multi-Homing Gateway.
- **Configure:** modify settings.
- Move: this sets the priority of the policies, number 1 being the highest priority.

## Adding a new Outgoing Policy

**Step 1:** Click on the New Entry button and the Add New Policy window will appear.



#### Step 2:

**Source Address:** Select the name of the LAN network from the drop down list. The drop down list contains the names of all LAN networks defined in the LAN section of the **Address** menu. To create a new source address, please go to the LAN section under the **Address** menu.

**Destination Address:** Select the name of the WAN 1/2 network from the drop down list. The drop down list contains the names of all WAN 1/2 networks defined in the WAN 1/2 section of the **Address** window. To create a new destination address, please go to the WAN 1/2 section under the **Address** menu.

Service: Specified services provided by WAN 1/2 net work servers. These are

services/application that are allowed to pass from the LAN network to the WAN 1/2 network.

Choose ANY for all services.

**Action:** Select Permit , Permit WAN 1 , Permit WAN 2 or Deny from the drop down list to allow or reject the packets travelling between the source network and the destination network.

Logging: Select Enable to enable flow monitoring.

Statistics: Select Enable to enable flow statistics.

Content Filtering: Select Enable to enable Content Filtering.

**Schedule**: Select the item listed in the schedule to enable the policy to automatically execute the function in a certain time and range.

- **Alarm** Threshold: set a maximum flow rate (in Kbytes/Sec). An alarm will be sent if flow rates are higher than the specified value.
- **Step 3:** Click **OK** to add a new outgoing policy; or click **Cancel** to cancel adding a new outgoing policy.

## Modifying an Outgoing policy

- **Step 1:** In the **Outgoing** policy section, locate the name of the policy desired to be modified and click its corresponding Modify option under the Configure field.
- Step 2: In the Modify Policy window, fill in new settings.
- Note: To change or add selections in the drop-down list for source or destination address, go to the section where the selections are setup. (Source Address→LAN of Address menu; Destination Address → WAN 1 of Address menu; Service→ [Pre-defined],[Custom] or Group under Service).

Step 3: Click OK to do confirm modification or click Cancel to cancel it.



## **Removing the Outgoing Policy**

- **Step 1.** In the **Outgoing** policy section, locate the name of the policy desired to be removed and click its corresponding **Remove** option in the **Configure** field.
- Step 2. In the Remove confirmation dialogue box, click OK to remove the policy or click Cancel to cancel removing.



#### **Enabled Monitoring function:**

**Log:** If Logging is enabled in the outgoing policy, the MULTI-HOMING GATEWAY will log the traffic and event passing through the Multi-Homing Gateway. The Administrator can click **Log** on the left menu bar to get the flow and event logs of the specified policy.

n ce	<u>Back</u>		Jan 18 01:42:04 🛩			Ne×
s	Time	Source	Destination	Protocol	Port	Disposition
e	Jan 18 01:42:04	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TGP	1186 => 80	<b>1</b>
ule	Jan 18 01:42:03	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TCP	1185 => 80	Ø
nt Filtering	Jan 18 01:40:38	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TGP	1169 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
Server	Jan 18 01:40:34	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TGP	1168 => 80	Ø
	Jan 18 01:09:14	61.10.7.133	218.167.16.170	TGP	22904 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
8	Jan 18 01:09:14	61.18.109.27	218.167.16.170	ICMP	TYPE=8	<b>1</b>
	Jan 18 00:51:41	218.148.14.84	218.167.16.170	TCP	1985 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
: Log	Jan 17 22:58:25	213.149.188.15	218.167.16.170	IGMP	TYPE=8	Ø
Log	Jan 17 18:47:20	61.229.175.201	218.167.16.170	TCP	1345 => 80	<b>Ø</b> .
ection Log	Jan 17 18:41:10	67.95.67.178	218.167.16.170	ICMP	TYPE=8	<b>Ø</b>
ackun	Jan 17 17:05:30	218.232.25.148	218.167.16.170	IGMP	TYPE=8	<b>Ø</b>
аскир	Jan 17 15:42:29	68.68.0.186	218.167.16.170	TCP	3294 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
	Jan 17 15:33:45	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3367 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
ICS	Jan 17 15:30:42	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3314 => 80	<b>1</b>
	Jan 17 15:27:39	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3261 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
	Jan 17 15:24:36	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TGP	3204 => 80	Ø
	Jan 17 15:21:33	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3161 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
	Jan 17 15:18:30	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3113 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
	Jan 17 15:30:42 Jan 17 15:27:39 Jan 17 15:24:36 Jan 17 15:21:33 Jan 17 15:18:30	61.58.123.102 61.58.123.102 61.58.123.102 61.58.123.102 61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57 218.167.13.57 218.167.13.57 218.167.13.57 218.167.13.57	TCP TCP TCP TCP TCP	3261 => 80 3204 => 80 3161 => 80 3113 => 80	

**Note:** System Administrator can back up and clear logs in this window. Check **the chapter entitled** "Log" to get details about the log and ways to back up and clear logs.

**Alarm:** If Logging is enabled in the outgoing policy, the Multi-Homing Gateway will log the traffic alarms and event alarms passing through the Multi-Homing Gateway. The Administrator can click **Alarm** on the left menu to get the logs of flow and event alarms of the specified policy.



**Note:** The Administrator can also get information on alarm logs from the Alarm window. Please refer to the section entitled "Alarm" for more information.

**Statistics:** If Statistics is enabled in the outgoing policy, the Multi-homing Gateway will display the flow statistics passing through the Multi-Homing Gateway.

G · O · 🗷 🖻 🟠 🔎 📩	🛛 🖉 · 🛬 🖃 · 🅉	🦉 – & ×
Multi-homing Router	Interface St	tatistics
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Interface Statistics Policy Statistics Status	WAN 1 Minut All WAN Interface Minut	Time <u>te Hour Day Week Month Year</u> <u>Hour Day Week Month Year</u>
Cone		🔮 Internet

**Note:** The Administrator can also get flow statistics in **Statistics**. Please refer to **Statistics** in Chapter 11 for more details.

## Incoming

This chapter describes steps to create policies for packets and services from the WAN 1/2 network to the LAN network including Mapped IP and Virtual Server.

#### **Enter Incoming window**

Step 1: Click Incoming under the Policy menu to enter the Incoming window. The Incoming table will display current defined policies from the WAN 1/2 network to assigned Mapped IP or Virtual Server.



Step 2: The fields of the Incoming window are:

- Source: source networks which are specified in the WAN section of the Address menu, or all the WAN network addresses.
- Destination: destination networks, which are IP Mapping addresses or Virtual server

network addresses created in Virtual Server menu.

- Service: services supported by Virtual Servers (or Mapped IP).
- Action: control actions to permit or deny packets from WAN networks to Virtual Server/Mapped IP travelling through the device.
- Option: specify the monitoring functions on packets from WAN networks to Virtual Server/Mapped IP travelling through the Multi-Homing Gateway.
- **Configure:** modify settings or remove incoming policy.

**Move:** this sets the priority of the policies, number 1 being the highest priority.

## Adding an Incoming Policy

Step 1: Under Incoming of the Policy menu, click the New Entry button.



#### Step 2:

**Source Address:** Select names of the WAN networks from the drop down list. The drop down list contains the names of all WAN networks defined in the **WAN** section of the **Address** menu. To create a new source address, please go to the LAN section under the **Address** menu.

**Destination Address:** Select names of the LAN networks from the drop down list. The drop down list contains the names of IP mapping addresses specified in the **Mapped IP** or the **Virtual Server** sections of **Virtual Server** menu. To create a new destination address, please go to the **Virtual Server** menu.

**Service:** Specified services provided by LAN network servers. These are services/application that are allowed to pass from the network to the LAN network. Choose ANY for all services.

**Action:** Select Permit or Deny from the drop down list to allow or reject the packets travelling between the specified WAN network and Virtual Server/Mapped IP.

Logging: select Enable to enable flow monitoring.

Statistics: select Enable to enable flow statistics.

**Schedule**: Select the item listed in the schedule to enable the policy to automatically execute the function in a certain time and range.

**Alarm Threshold:** set a maximum flow rate (in Kbytes/Sec). An alarm will be sent if flow rates are higher than the specified value.

**Step 3:** Click **OK** to add new policy or click **Cancel** to cancel adding new incoming policy.

#### **Modifying Incoming Policy**

- **Step 1:** In the **Incoming** window, locate the name of policy desired to be modified and click its corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2:** In the Modify Policy window, fill in new settings.
- Step 3: Click OK to save modifications or click Cancel to cancel modifications.

IC FARMARY	
ystem       Modify Policy         tterface       Source Address         ddress       Destination Address         ervice       Service         chedule       Service         ontent Filtering       Action         pN       Logging         olicy       Statistics         Dutgoing       Schedule         AN To DMZ       Alarm Threshold         AN To LAN       MAX. Concurrent Sessions	Outside_Any   Inside_Any   FTP   PERMIT   Enable  Schedule_1   O.1 KBytes/Sec  O (0:means unlimited)  OK Cancel

#### **Removing an Incoming Policy**

- **Step 1:** In the **Incoming** window, locate the name of policy desired to be removed and click its corresponding [**Remove**] in the Configure field.
- **Step 2:** In the Remove confirmation window, click **Ok** to remove the policy or click **Cancel** to cancel removing.



## WAN To DMZ & LAN To DMZ

This section describes steps to create policies for packets and services from the WAN networks to the DMZ networks. Please follow the same procedures for LAN networks to DMZ networks.

#### Enter [WAN To DMZ] or [LAN To DMZ] window:

Click **WAN To DMZ** under **Policy** menu to enter the **WAN To DMZ** window. The WAN To DMZ table will show up displaying currently defined policies.


#### The fields in WAN To DMZ window:

- Source: source networks, which are addresses specified in the WAN section of the Address menu, or all the WAN network addresses.
- Destination: destination networks, which are addresses specified in DMZ section of the Address menu and Mapped IP addresses of the Virtual Server menu.
- **Service:** services supported by servers in DMZ network.
- Action: control actions, to permit or deny packets from WAN networks to DMZ travelling through the Multi-Homing Gateway.
- Option: specify the monitoring functions of packets from WAN network to DMZ network travelling through Multi-Homing Gateway.
- **Configure:** modify settings or remove policies.

#### Adding a new WAN To DMZ Policy:

Step 1: Click the New Entry button and the Add New Policy window will appear.



#### Step 2:

**Source Address:** Select names of the WAN networks from the drop down list. The drop down list contains the names of all WAN networks defined in the **WAN** section of the **Address** menu. To create a new source address, please go to the **Internal** section under the **Address** menu.

**Destination Address:** Select the name of the DMZ network from the drop down list. The drop down list contains the names of the DMZ network created in the **Address** menu. It will also contain Mapped IP addresses from the **Virtual Server** menu that were created for the

DMZ network. To create a new destination address, please go to the **Virtual Server** menu. (Please refer to the sections entitled **Address** and **Virtual Server** for details)

**Service:** Select a service from drop down list. The drop down list will contain services defined in the **Custom** or **Group** section under the **Service** menu. These are services/application that are allowed to pass from the WAN network to the DMZ network. Choose ANY for all services. To add or modify these services, please go to the **Service** menu. (Please refer to the section entitled **Services** for details)

**Action:** Select Permit or Deny from the drop down list to allow or reject the packets travelling from the specified WAN network to the DMZ network.

Logging: select Enable to enable flow monitoring.

Statistics: select Enable to enable flow statistics.

**Schedule**: Select the item listed in the schedule to enable the policy to automatically execute the function in a certain time and range.

**Alarm Threshold:** set a maximum flow rate (in Kbytes/Sec). An alarm will be send if a flow rate exceeds the specified value.

Step 3: Click OK.

#### Modifying an WAN To DMZ policy:

- **Step 1:** In the **WAN To DMZ** window, locate the name of policy desired to be modified and click its corresponding **Modify** option in the **Configure** field.
- Step 2: In the Modify Policy window, fill in new settings.
- Step 3: Click OK to do save modifications.



#### Removing an WAN To DMZ Policy:

**Step 1:** In the **WAN To DMZ** window, locate the name of policy desired to be removed and click its corresponding **Remove** option in the **Configure** field.

Step 2: In the Remove confirmation pop-up box, click OK to remove the policy.



## DMZ To WAN & DMZ To LAN

This section describes steps to create policies for packets and services from DMZ networks to WAN (WAN) networks. Please follow the same procedures for DMZ networks to LAN networks.

#### Entering the DMZ To WAN window:

Click **DMZ To WAN** under **Policy** menu and the **DMZ To WAN** table appears displaying currently defined **DMZ To WAN** policies.



#### The fields in the DMZ To WAN window are:

- Source: source network addresses which are specified in the DMZ section of the Address window.
- **Destination:** destination networks, which is the WAN network address
- **Service:** services supported by Servers of WAN networks.

- Action: control actions, to permit or deny packets from the DMZ network to WAN networks travelling through the MULTI-HOMING GATEWAY.
- Option: specify the monitoring functions on packets from the DMZ network to WAN networks travelling through the Multi-Homing Gateway.
- **Configure:** modify settings or remove policies
- Move: this sets the priority of the policies, number 1 being the highest priority.

#### Adding a DMZ To WAN Policy:

Step 1: Click the New Entry button and the Add New Policy window will appear.



#### Step 2:

**Source Address:** Select the name of the DMZ network from the drop down list. The drop down list will contain names of DMZ networks defined in **DMZ** section of the **Address** menu. To add a new source address, please go to the **DMZ** section under the **Address** menu.

**Destination Address:** Select the name of the WAN network from the drop down list. The drop down list lists names of addresses defined in **WAN** section of the **Address** menu. To add a new destination address, please go to **WAN** section of the **Address** menu.

**Service:** Select a service from drop down list. The drop down list will contain services defined in the **Custom** or **Group** section under the **Service** menu. These are services/application that

are allowed to pass from the DMZI network to the WAN network. Choose ANY for all services. To add or modify these services, please go to the **Service** menu.

**Action:** Select Permit or Deny from the drop down list to allow or reject the packets travelling from the specified DMZ network to the WAN network.

Logging: Select Enable to enable flow monitoring.

Statistics: Select Enable to enable flow statistics.

**Content Filtering:** Select Enable to enable Content Filtering.

**Schedule**: Select the item listed in the schedule to enable the policy to automatically execute the function in a certain time and range.

- Alarm Threshold: set a maximum flow rate (in Kbytes/Sec). An alarm will be sent if flow rates are higher than the specified value.
- Step 3: Click OK to add new policy or click Cancel to cancel adding.

#### Modifying a DMZ To WAN policy:

- **Step 1:** In the DMZ to WAN window, locate the name of policy desired to be modified and click its corresponding Modify option in the Configure field.
- **Step 2:** In the Modify Policy window, fill in new settings.

Note: To change or add selections in the drop-down list, go to the section where the selections are setup. (Source Address $\rightarrow$ DMZ of Address; Destination Address $\rightarrow$ WAN, Service $\rightarrow$ Pre-defined Service, Custom or Group under Service.)

**Step 3:** Click OK to save modifications or click Cancel to cancel modifications.

O · O · N 2 %	<mark>,                                    </mark>	DMZ To WAN
SystemInterfaceAddressServiceScheduleContent FilteringVirtual ServerVPNPolicyOutgoingIncomingWAN To DMZLAN To DMZDMZ To WANDMZ To LANLogAlarmStatisticsStatus	Modify Policy Source Address Destination Address Service Action, WAN Port Logging Statistics Content Filtering Schedule Alarm Threshold MAX. Concurrent Sessions	DMZ_Any V Outside_Any V ANY V PERMIT ALL V Enable Enable Enable Schedule_1 V 0.1 KBytes/Sec 0 (0:means unlimited) OK Cancel
Done		🧶 Internet

#### Removing a DMZ To WAN Policy:

**Step 1.** In the **DMZ To WAN** window, locate the name of policy desired to be removed and click its corresponding Remove option in the Configure field.

Step 2. In the Remove confirmation dialogue box, click OK.



# Log

The Multi-Homing Gateway supports traffic logging and event logging to monitor and record services, connection times, and the source and destination network address. The Administrator may also download the log files for backup purposes. The Administrator mainly uses the Log menu to monitor the traffic passing through the Multi-Homing Gateway.

### What is Log?

Log records all connections that pass through the Multi-Homing Gateway Gateway's control policies. Traffic log's parameters are setup when setting up control policies. Traffic logs record the details of packets such as the start and stop time of connection, the duration of connection, the source address, the destination address and services requested, for each control policy. Event logs record the contents of System Configuration changes made by the Administrator such as the time of change, settings that change, the IP address used to log on, etc.

#### How to use the Log

The Administrator can use the log data to monitor and manage the device and the networks. The Administrator can view the logged data to evaluate and troubleshoot the network, such as pinpointing the source of traffic congestions.



The Administrator queries the Multi-Homing Gateway for information, such as source address, destination address, start time, and Protocol port, of all connections.

## **Entering the Traffic Log window**

Click the **Traffic Log** option under **Log** menu to enter the Traffic Log window.

lress vice redule	Time	Source	Destination			
vice redule	lan 18 01 12 04		Destination	Protocol	Port	Disposition
edule	Jan 10 01.42.04	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TGP	1186 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
Contraction of the second s	Jan 18 01:42:03	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TCP	1185 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
tent Filtering	Jan 18 01:40:38	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TGP	1169 => 80	Ø
al Server	Jan 18 01:40:34	192.168.1.3	192.168.1.1	TCP	1168 => 80	🥑
	Jan 18 01:09:14	61.10.7.133	218.167.16.170	TCP	22904 => 80	<b>1</b>
cy	Jan 18 01:09:14	61.18.109.27	218.167.16.170	IGMP	TYPE=8	<b>1</b>
	Jan 18 00:51:41	218.148.14.84	218.167.16.170	TGP	1985 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
ffic Log	Jan 17 22:58:25	213.149.188.15	218.167.16.170	ICMP	TYPE=8	<b>1</b>
ent Log	Jan 17 18:47:20	61.229.175.201	218.167.16.170	TGP	1345 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
nnection Log	Jan 17 18:41:10	67.95.67.178	218.167.16.170	ICMP	TYPE=8	<b>1</b>
1 Backup	Jan 17 17:05:30	218.232.25.148	218.167.16.170	ICMP	TYPE=8	<b>1</b>
y Duokup	Jan 17 15:42:29	68.68.0.186	218.167.16.170	TGP	3294 => 80	<b>1</b>
lietice	Jan 17 15:33:45	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TGP	3367 => 80	<b>1</b>
hue	Jan 17 15:30:42	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3314 => 80	S 100
us g	Jan 17 15:27:39	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TGP	3261 => 80	<b>Ø</b>
	Jan 17 15:24:36	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TGP	3204 => 80	1 de la companya de la compan
	Jan 17 15:21:33	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TGP	3161 => 80	<b>1</b>
	Jan 17 15:18:30	61.58.123.102	218.167.13.57	TCP	3113 => 80	1 No. 1

# Traffic Log Table

The table in the Traffic Log window displays current System statuses:

- **Time**: The start time of the connection.
- **Source:** IP address of the source network of the specific connection.
- **Destination:** IP address of the destination network of the specific connection.
- **Protocol & Port:** Protocol type and Port number of the specific connection.
- **Disposition:** Accept or Deny.

# **Downloading the Traffic Logs**

The Administrator can backup the traffic logs regularly by downloading it to the computer.

- Step 1. In the Traffic Log window, click the Download Logs button at the bottom of the screen.
- **Step 2.** Save the traffic logs into a specified directory on the hard drive.

### 🔇 • 🕥 · 🖻 🖻 🏠 🔎 🌟 🏵 🔗 😓 • 🦓



System

Interface Address

Service

Policy

Log

Schedule

**Content Filter** 

Virtual Serve VPN

Traffic Log Event Log Connection Log Backup Alarm Statistics Status

Multi-homine

Rou

Router	Traffic Log	
	Jon 10 02:00:20 - 20	1840
📮 traffic[2] - Notepad		<u>INE</u>
File Edit Format View Help	Dis	position
New      Ctrl+N      D5        Open      Ctrl+O      D5        Save      Ctrl+S      D5        Save As      D5        Page Setup      D5        Print      Ctrl+P      D5        Jan 18      03:04:21      2005        Jan 18      03:04:21      2005	ACCEPT 219.112.51.55 192.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 219.112.51.55 192.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.112.51.55 TCP 2152 14924 # ACCEPT 191.12.51.55 192.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 191.12.51.55 192.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.112.51.55 TCP 2152 14924 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.112.55 TCP 2152 14924 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 159.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 191.12.51.55 192.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 191.12.51.55 192.168.1.3 TCP 14924 2152 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 165.76.164.105 TCP 2058 6891 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.112.51.55 TCP 2159 14924 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.112.51.55 TCP 2059 14706 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 218.156.206.141 TCP 2025 26916 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 218.156.206.141 TCP 2059 6881 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 218.156.206.141 TCP 2059 6881 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.78.51.132 TCP 14954 1195 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.78.51.132 TCP 2059 14706 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.78.51.132 TCP 2059 14706 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 218.45.168.51 TCP 2059 6881 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 218.45.168.51 TCP 2059 6881 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.97.64 TCP 2059 6881 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.97.64 TCP 2059 6881 # ACCEPT 192.168.1.3 219.98.94.64 TCP 2115 11259 #	000000000000000000000000000000000000000

🦺 – ð ×

## **Clearing the Traffic Logs**

The Administrator may clear on-line logs to keep just the most updated logs on the screen.Step 1. In the Traffic Log window, click the Clear Logs button at the bottom of the screen.Step 2. In the Clear Logs pop-up box, click Ok to clear the logs or click Cancel to cancel it.





When the Multi-Homing Gateway detects events, the Administrator can get the details, such as time and description of the events from the Event Logs.

## **Entering the Event Log window**

Click the Event Log option under the Log menu and the Event Log window will appear.



The table in the Event Log window displays the time and description of the events.

- **Time:** time when the event occurred.
- **Event:** description of the event.

## **Downloading the Event Logs**

- **Step 1.** In the Event Log window, click the Download Logs button at the bottom of the screen.
- Step 2. Save the event logs into a specific directory on the hard drive.



## **Clearing the Event Logs**

The Administrator may clear on-line event logs to keep just the most updated logs on the screen.

**Step 1.** In the Event Log window, click the Clear Logs button at the bottom of the screen.

Step 2. In the Clear Logs pop-up box, click OK to clear the logs or click Cancel to cancel it.



## **Connection Log**

Click Log in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-selection Connection Log.



#### Definition:

Time : The start and end time of connection.

**Connection Log** : Event description during connection.

## **Download Logs**

- **Step 1.** Click **Log** in the menu bar on the left hand side and then select the sub-selection **Connection Log**.
- Step 2. In Connection Log window, click the Download Logs button.
- **Step 3.** Save the logs to the specified location.

<b>3</b> • <b>5</b> -	💌 🖻 🏠		<b>? ⊕</b> ⊗ • 🎍 🖻 • 🍇	🥂 – 8 ×
evel MU	liti-homi Router	ing	Connection Log	
System			lon 17 15-41-42	
Interface	📕 local7[1] -	Notepad		<u>Next</u>
Address	File Edit Forma	at View I	Help	
Service Schedule Content Filte Virtual Serve VPN Policy Log Traffic Log Event Log Connection Log Backup Alarm Statistics Status	New Open Save As Page Setup Print Exit	Ctrl+N Ctrl+O Ctrl+P Ctrl+P	D5 Firewall pppd[5516]; warning: couldn't open ppp database /var/run/pppd. _UNIQ Successful match Jan 17 15:41:50 2005 Firewall pppd[5519]: Got conn 57.16.170Jan 17 15:41:50 2005 Firewall pppd[5519]: Remote IP address chang	
	<			

## **Clear Logs**

- **Step 1.** Click Log in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select the sub-selection Connection Logs.
- **Step 2.** In Connection Log window, click the **Clear Logs** button.
- **Step 3.** In Clear Logs window, click **OK** to clear the logs or click **Cancel** to discard changes.

3 · 0 · 🖻 🗟 🏠	🔎 📩 🕲 😒 - 🍃	Z - 3%	🥂 – ē ×
Multi-homi Router	ng	Connection Log	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Traffic Log Event Log Connection Log Log Backup Alarm Statistics Status	Time        Jan 17 15:41:48        Jan 17 15:41:49        Jan 17 15:41:49        Jan 17 15:41:50        Jan 17 15:41:50	Jan 17 15:41:48 ▼      Connection Log      Warning: couldn't open ppp database /var/run/pppd.tdb      pppd 2.4.1 started by root, uid 0      tdb_store failed: Invalid tdb context      Couldn't allocate PPP unit -1073449922 as it is already in use      Using interface ppp0      tdb_store failed: Invalid tdb context      PPPoE : Couldn't increase MTU to 1500      Co      Microsoft Internet Explorer      Int      O      O      O      O      O      Vicrosoft Internet Explorer      Int      O      O      O      O      O      Vicrosoft Internet Explorer      O      OK      Cancel      HO      Sot connection: 1ab0      pads      Connecting PPPoE socket: 00:90:1a:40:3a:50 1ab0 eth1 0x53778      using channel 6	Next
🙆 Done		11 🕲	iternet



The Log Backup



#### Step 2.

- Log Mail Configuration : When the Log Mail files accumulated up to 300Kbytes, router will notify administrator by email with the traffic log and event log. 
  Note: Before enabling this function, you have to enable E-mail Alarm in Administrator.
- Syslog Settings : If you enable this function, system will transmit the Traffic Log and the Event Log simultaneously to the server which supports Syslog function.

## Enable Log Mail Support & Syslog Message

## Log Mail Configuration /Enable Log Mail Support

- Step 1. Firstly, go to Admin –Select Enable E-mail Alert Notification under E-Mail Settings. Enter the e-mail address to receive the alarm notification. Click OK.
- **Step 2.** Go to LOG  $\rightarrow$ Log Backup. Check to enable Log Mail Support. Click OK.

#### System Settings/Enable Syslog Message

- **Step 3.** Check to enable Syslog Message. Enter the Host IP Address and Host Port number to receive the Syslog message.
- Step 4. Click OK.



## **Disable Log Mail Support & Syslog Message**

Step 1. Go to LOG →Log Backup. Uncheck to disable Log Mail Support. Click OK.

Step 2. Go to LOG →Log Backup. Uncheck to disable Settings Message. Click OK.



# Alarm

In this chapter, the Administrator can view traffic alarms and event alarms that occur and the Multi-Homing Gateway has logged.

Multi-Homing Gateway has two alarms: Traffic Alarm and Event Alarm.

#### Traffic alarm:

In control policies, the Administrator set the threshold value for traffic alarm. The System regularly checks whether the traffic for a policy exceeds its threshold value and adds a record to the traffic alarm file if it does.

#### Event alarm:

When Multi-Homing Gateway detects attacks from hackers, it writes attacking data in the event alarm file and sends an e-mail alert to the Administrator to take emergency steps.



## Entering the Traffic Alarm window

Click the Traffic Alarm option below Alarm menu to enter the Traffic Alarm window.



The table in the Traffic Alarm window displays the current traffic alarm logs for connections.

- Time: The start and stop time of the specific connection.
- **Source:** Name of the source network of the specific connection.
- **Destination:** Name of the destination network of the specific connection.
- **Service:** Service of the specific connection.
- **Traffic:** Traffic (in Kbytes/Sec) of the specific connection.

## **Downloading the Traffic Alarm Logs**

The Administrator can back up traffic alarm logs regularly and download it to a file on the computer.

- **Step 1.** In the Traffic Alarm window, click the Download Logs button on the bottom of the screen.
- **Step 2.** Save the traffic alarm logs into specific directory on the hard drive.

G · O · I	🖻 🗟 🏠 🔎 🤞	😽 🚱 🗟 · 💺 🖻 · 🖓		🥂 – 🗗 ×
	ti-homing Router	Traffic Alar	rm	
System	trafficalarm[1] - No	len 19.02-20~02-45 av		
Address	File Edit Format View	Help		
Service Schedule Content Filter Virtual Serve VPN Policy Log Alarm Blaster Alarn Traffic Alarm Event Alarm Statistics Status	New Ctrl+N Open. Ctrl+O Save As Print Ctrl+P Exit Exit	Inside_Any outside_Any ANY 3.923 Inside_Any outside_Any ANY 0.797 Inside_Any outside_Any ANY 0.797 Inside_Any outside_Any ANY 0.207 Inside_Any outside_Any ANY 0.572		

## **Clearing the Traffic Alarm Logs**

Step 1. In the Traffic Alarm window, click the Clear Logs button at the bottom of the screen.Step 2. In the Clear Logs pop-up box, click Ok to clear the logs or click Cancel to cancel.





## **Entering the Event Alarm window**

Click the Event Alarm option below the Alarm menu to enter the Event Alarm window.

The table in Event Alarm window displays current traffic alarm logs for connections.

- Time: log time.
- **Event:** event descriptions.



## **Downloading the Event Alarm Logs**

The Administrator can back up event alarm logs regularly by downloading it to a file on the computer.

- **Step 1.** In the Event Alarm window, click the Download Logs button at the bottom of the screen.
- Step 2. Save the event alarm logs into specific directory on the hard drive.



## **Clearing Event Alarm Logs**

The Administrator may clear on-line logs to keep the most updated logs on the screen.

Step 1. In the Event Alarm window, click the Clear Logs button at the bottom of the screen.Step 2. In the Clear Logs pop-up box, click OK.

3 · 0 - 🖹 🗟 🟠	> ★ @ @ ·	🖕 🖻 - 🖓	🥂 – ð ×
Multi-homi Router	Ing	Event Alarm	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Log Alarm Blaster Alarm	Time Jan 18 06:18:13 Jan 18 06:17:38 Jan 18 06:17:37	Jan 18 06:18:13 ▼      Event      The system has detected the attack of TCP port scan , suspected to be 218.167.20.94      The system has detected the attack of TCP port scan , suspected to be 218.167.20.94      The system has detected the attack of TCP port scan , suspected to be 218.167.20.94      Clear Logs    Download Logs	
Traffic Alarm Event Alarm Statistics Status		Microsoft Internet Explorer X Do you really want to clean ? OK Cancel	
Done		a toka	net

# Statistics

In this chapter, the Administrator queries the Multi-Homing Gateway for statistics of packets and data which passes across the Multi-Homing Gateway. The statistics provides the Administrator with information about network traffics and network loads.

## What is Statistics

Statistics are the statistics of packets that pass through the Multi-Homing Gateway by control policies setup by the Administrator.

### How to use Statistics

The Administrator can get the current network condition from statistics, and use the information provided by statistics as a basis to mange networks.

# WAN Statistics

**Step 1.** Click Statistics in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select WAN Statistics.

Step 2. The WAN Statistics will be displayed.



## Entering the Statistics window by Time

The Statistics window displays the statistics of network connections (downstream and upstream as well) by minute, hour, or day.

**All WAN Interface :** Displays statistics of WAN 1/2 network connections (downstream and upstream as well) in a total amount by minute, hour or day.

- Step 1. Click Statistics in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select WAN Statistics.
- **Step 2.** In Statistics window, find the domain name you want to view.
- **Step 3.** In the Statistics window, find the network you want to view and click Minute on the right hand side, and then you will be able to view the Statistics figure every minute; click Hour to view the Statistics figure every hour; click Day to view the Statistics figure every day.

**Real-Time:** Real display Download speed (KBytes/Sec) and Upload speed (KBytes/Sec)

Y-Coordinate: Network Traffic (Kbytes/Sec) .

 $\textbf{X-Coordinate}: \mathsf{Time}~(\mathsf{Hour}/\mathsf{Minute}/\mathsf{Day})$  .


## **Policy Statistics**

#### **Entering the Statistics window**

**Step 1.** The Statistics window displays the statistics of current network connections.

- **Source:** the name of source address.
- **Destination:** the name of destination address.
- **Service:** the service requested.
- Action: permit or deny
- Time: viewable by minutes, hours, or days



#### **Entering the Policy Statistics**

- Step 1. Click Statistics in the menu bar on the left hand side, and then select WAN Statistics.
- Step 2. In Statistics window, find the domain name you want to view
- **Step 3.** In the Statistics window, find the network you want to view and click Minute on the right hand side, and then you will be able to view the Statistics figure every minute; click Hour to view the Statistics figure every hour; click Day to view the Statistics figure every day.

**Real-Time:** Real display Download speed (KBytes/Sec) and Upload speed (KBytes/Sec) **Y-Coordinate** : Network Traffic (Kbytes/Sec).

 $\textbf{X-Coordinate}: \mathsf{Time}\;(\;\mathsf{Hour/Minute/Day}\;)$  .



# Status

In this section, the device displays the status information about the Multi-Homing Gateway. Status will display the network information from the Configuration menu. The Administrator may also use Status to check the DHCP lease time and MAC addresses for computers connected to the Multi-Homing Gateway.

# Interface Status

#### Entering the Interface Status window

Click on **Status** in the menu bar, then click **Interface Status** below it. A window will appear providing information from the **Configuration** menu. **Interface Status** will list the settings for LAN **Interface, WAN 1/2 Interface, and the DMZ Interface.** 

d drama				0 Day 1	7 Hour 31 Min 32 S
duress		LAN	WAN1	WAN2	DMZ
ervice	Forwarding Mode	NAT	PPPoE	Static IP	NAT
chedule	Connection Status		<u>a</u>	믣.	
ontent Filtering	Max. Downstream / Upstream		512 / 512 Kbps	512 / 512 Kbps	
rtual Server	Downstream Alloca.		100%	0%	
PN	Upstream Alloca.		90%	10%	
olicy	Connect Time		0:04:50		
9	MAC Address	00:e0:98:bf:35:5d	00:e0:98:bf:35:5e	00:e0:98:bf:35:5f	00:e0:98:bf:35:60
arm	IP Address	192.168.1.1	218.167.11.37	211.21.10.171	192.168.11.1
atistics	Netmask	255.255.255.0	255.255.255.255	255.255.255.248	255.255.255.0
atus	Default Gateway		218.167.0.254	211.21.10.169	
terface Status	DNS1		168.95.192.1	168.95.192.1	
RP Table	DNS2		168.95.1.1	168.95.1.1	
HCP Clients	Rx Pkts, Error Pkts	550,0	418,0	0,0	0,0
	Tx Pkts, Error Pkts	712, 0	306,0	78,0	0,0
	Ping	Sec. 1		Ø	Sec. 2
	HTTP	Sec. 19			



#### **Entering the ARP Table window**

Click on **Status** in the menu bar, then click **ARP Table** below it. A window will appear displaying a table with IP addresses and their corresponding MAC addresses. For each computer on the LAN, WAN 1/2/3/4, and DMZ network that replies to an ARP packet, the device will list them in this ARP table.



IP Address: The IP address of the host computerMAC Address: The MAC address of that host computerInterface: The port that the host computer is connected to (LAN, WAN 1/2/3/4, DMZ)



#### **Entering the DHCP Clients window**

Click on **Status** in the menu bar, then click on **DHCP Clients** below it. A window will appear displaying the table of DHCP clients that are connected to the device. The table will list host computers on the LAN network that obtain its IP address from the Multi-Homing Gateway's DHCP server function.



IP Address: the IP address of the LAN host computerMAC Address: MAC address of the LAN host computerLeased Time: The Start and End time of the DHCP lease for the LAN host computer.

# Setup Examples

Example 1:	Allow the LAN network to be able to access the Internet
Example 2:	The LAN network can only access Yahoo.com website
Example 3:	Outside users can access the LAN FTP server through Virtual Servers
Example 4:	Install a server inside the LAN network and have the Internet (WAN 1) users access the server through IP Mapping

Please see the explanation of the examples below:

## Example 1: Allow the LAN network to be able to access the Internet

**Step 1** Enter the Outgoing window under the Policy menu.

**Step 2** Click the New Entry button on the bottom of the screen.

**Step 3** In the Add New Policy window, enter each parameter, then click OK.

System   Interface   Add New Policy   Source Address   Service   Schedule   Content Filtering   Virtual Server   Virtual Server   Virtual Server   Virtual Server   Outgoing   Incoming   Content Filtering   Content Filtering   Outgoing   Incoming   WAN To DMZ   LAN   DMZ To UAN   DMZ To LAN   Log   Aarm   Statistice   Status     Ott Cancel     Ott Cancel	Multi-hom Router	ing	Outgoing	
	System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Outgoing Incoming WAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ DMZ To UAN DMZ To LAN Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Policy Source Address Destination Address Service Action, WAN Port Logging Statistics Content Filtering Schedule Alarm Threshold MAX. Concurrent Sessions	Inside_Any   Outside_Any   Outside_Any   ANY   PERMIT ALL   PERMIT ALL   PERMIT ALL   PERMIT ALL   PERMIT ALL   O C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Cancel

**Step 4** When the following screen appears, the setup is completed.

G · 🕤 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	े 📩 🙆 😒 🚺	<b>≥</b> • <b>∛</b>			<b>a</b> - 8	×
Multi-homin Router	g	i.	Outgoing			
SystemInterfaceAddressServiceScheduleContent FilteringVirtual ServerVPNPolicyOutgoingIncomingWAN To DMZLAN To DMZDMZ To WANDMZ To LANLogAlarmStatisticsStatisticsStatus	Source Desti Inside_Any Outsi	ination Service de_Any ANY	Action Option	Configure Medity Remove	Move To 1 -	
E Done					🔮 Internet	

#### **Example 2:** The LAN network can only access Yahoo.com website.

Step 1. Enter the WAN window under the Address menu.

Step 2. Click the New Entry button.

Step 3. In the Add New Address window, enter relating parameters.

Step 4. Click **OK** to end the address table setup.

③ · ◎ · ≥ ≥ ☆ ♀ ☆ ⊕ ⊗ · ≥ ≥ · ∞	🥂 – 🕫 ×
Router	WAN
System       Interface         Address       Name         LAN       IP Address         LAN Group       IP Address         WAN       WAN         WAN       WAN         WAN       WAN         MZ Group       DMZ         Service       Schedule         Content Filtering       Virtual Server         VPN       Policy         Log       Alarm         Statistics       Statistics         Statistics       Statistics	yahoo         66.218.71.198         255.255.255         OK Cancel
Done	

Step 5. Go to the Outgoing window under the Policy menu.

Step 6. Click the New Entry button.

Step 7. In the Add New Policy window, enter corresponding parameters. Click OK.



Step 8. When the following screen appears, the setup is completed.

3 · ) · 🖹 🗟 🏠	P 🛧 🛛 🖉 -	🎍 🖃 • 🚜				<b>a</b> -	₽×
Multi-homi Router	ng		0	utgoing			
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Outgoing Incoming WAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ DMZ To UAN DMZ To LAN Log Alarm Statistics Status	Source Inside_Any	Destination yahoo	Service A ANY	Action Option	Configure Medity Remove	Move To 1 🛩	
E Done						🌍 Internet	

### Example 3:Outside users can access the LAN FTP server through Virtual Servers

- Step 1. Enter Virtual Server under the Virtual Server menu.
- Step 2. Click the 'click here to configure' button.
- Step 3. Select an WAN 1/2 IP address, then click OK.
- Step 4. Click the New Service button on the bottom of the screen.
- Step 5. Add the FTP service pointing to the LAN server IP address.
- Step 6. Click OK.



Step 7. A new Virtual Service should appear.

3 · ) · 🖹 🖻 🏠	🔎 🛠 🥹 🗟 • 🍇 🔕 • 🍇			🥂 – ð ×
Multi-homi Router	ing	Virtual Se	rver1	
System Interface	Virtual Server Real IP	3.10.120		
Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server2 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Service FTP (21)	WAN Port 21 New Entry	Server Virtual IP 192.168.1.100	Configure Modify Remove
Cone Done				🔮 Internet

Step 8. Go to the Incoming window under the Policy menu, then click on the New Entry button.

3 · 🕲 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🍃	० 👷 🚱 🔗 🍓 🖬 र 🍇				🥂 – æ ×
Multi-homin Router	Q	Incomi	ng		
SystemInterfaceAddressServiceScheduleContent FilteringVirtual ServerVPNPolicyOutgoingIncomingWAN To DMZLAN To DMZDMZ To WANDMZ To UANLogAlarmStatisticsStatus	Source Destination	n Service Action	n Option	Configure	Move
E Done				🌍 Int	ernet

Step 9. In the Add New Policy window, set each parameter, then click OK.



Step 10. An Incoming FTP policy should now be created.



## Example 4:Install a server inside the LAN network and have the Internet (WAN 1) users access the server through IP Mapping

Step 1. Enter the Mapped IP window under the Virtual Server menu.

Step 2. Click the New Entry button.



Step 3. In the Add New IP Mapping window, enter each parameter, and then click OK.

3 · 6) · 🗷 🗟 🏠 🔎	📩 🚱 🔗 🖓 🗔 ·	-8		🥂 – 8 ×
Router		Mappe	d IP	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server2 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status	Add New Mapped IP WAN IP Map To Virtual IP	218.167.19.56 Assist 192.168.1.100		OK Cancel
E Done				🔮 Internet

Step 4. When the following screen appears, the IP Mapping setup is completed.

G · 🕞 · 🖹 🖻 🏠	P 🛧 @	) 🖉 · 🍓 🗔 · 🎕	8		n – म ×
Multi-hom Router	ling		Mapped IP		
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server Mapped IP Virtual Server1 Virtual Server2 Virtual Server3 Virtual Server4 VPN Policy Log Alarm Statistics Status		WAN IP 218.167.19.56	Map To Virtual IP 192.168.1.100	Configure Modify Remove	
E Done				🔮 Intern	net

Step 5. Go to the Incoming window under the Policy menu.

Step 6. Click the New Entry button.



Step 7. In the Add New Policy window, set each parameter, then click OK.

Step 8. Open all the services. (ANY)

System       Add New Policy         Interface       Source Address         Address       Outside_Any         Service       Destination Address         Schedule       Content Filtering         Virtual Server       Action         VPN       PERMIT         Policy       Logging         Outgoing       Statistics         Incoming       Schedule         WAN To DMZ       LAN To DMZ         DMZ To LAN       MAX. Concurrent Sessions         Log       Q         Alarm       Statistics	3.167.19.56) ·
Status	tes/Sec eans unlimited) OK Cancel

Step 9. The setup is completed.

G · 🕤 · 🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	) 📩 🚱 🗟 · 🍇 🔂 · 🍇		a - a ×
Router	9	Incoming	
System Interface Address Service Schedule Content Filtering Virtual Server VPN Policy Outgoing Incoming WAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ LAN To DMZ DMZ To WAN DMZ To LAN Log Alarm Statistics Status	Source       Destination         Outside_Any       Mapped IP(218.167.19.56)	Service Action Option	Configure Move
🕘 Done			Internet

# **General Public License**

This product incorporates open source code into the software and therefore falls under the guidelines governed by the General Public License (GPL) agreement.

Adhering to the GPL requirements, the open source code and open source license for the source code are available for free download at <u>http://global.level1.com</u>.

If you would like a copy of the GPL or other open source code in this software on a physical CD medium, LevelOne (Digital Data Communications) offers to mail this CD to you upon request, for a price of US\$9.99 plus the cost of shipping.